
Agenda, Regular Board Meeting          February 21, 2023 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
District Office: 202 W. El Roblar Drive, Ojai, CA 93023 

JOIN BY COMPUTER: https://meet.goto.com/203971861 
DIAL-IN (US TOLL-FREE): 1 877 309 2073 
ACCESS CODE: 203-971-861 

If you require special accommodations for attendance at or participation in this meeting, 
please notify our office 24 hours in advance at (805) 646-2114.  

(Govt. Code Section 94594.1 and 94594.2 (a)) 

February 21, 2023, at 6:00 pm. 
1. Call meeting to order

2. Roll call

3. Approval of the minutes: January 17, 2022, Regular Meeting

4. Public comment for items not appearing on the agenda

Right to be heard:  Members of the public have a right to address the Board directly on any item 
of interest to the public that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board, provided that no 
action shall be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is otherwise 
authorized by subdivision (b) of Section 54954.2.    
Please Note:  If you have comments on a specific agenda item(s), please fill out a comment card 
or send a virtual “chat” note to the Board Secretary. The Board President will call on you for your 
comments at the appropriate time, either before or during the Board’s consideration of that item. 

Closed Session Agenda - Adjourn to Closed Session (6:10 pm):  It is the intention of the Board of 
Directors to meet in Closed Session to consider the following items: 

5. Closed Session Items
a) The Board of Directors may hold a closed session to discuss personnel matters or litigation,

pursuant to attorney/client privilege, as authorized by Government Code Section 54957,
54956.8, & 54956.9, and 54957.

• State Case: SBCK vs. SWRCB, San Francisco Superior Court, Case # CPF-14-513875

Regular Agenda (***Reconvene Regular Meeting, Estimated Time 6:30 pm***) 

Page 1 of 139

https://meet.goto.com/203971861


Agenda, Regular Board Meeting                                             February 21, 2023   
 

 

6. Financial matters 

Approval of Payroll and Payables from January 16, 2022, to February 15, 2023, in the amount   of: 
 

Payables – $  92,236.78 

 Payroll –  $  51,514.35 

 Total –           $143,751.13 

7. Board action and/or discussion  

a) Approval of Resolution 20230221: Adoption of Board Bylaws. (Etchart/Oakland) – Attachment 
Recommended Action: Approval of Resolution 20230221: Adoption of Board Bylaws. 
 

b) Approval of updated Board Policy F-002: Purchasing Goods & Services. (Etchart/Ward) – 
Attachment 
Recommended Action: Approve updated Board Policy F-002: Purchasing Goods & Services. 
 

c) Ventura Watershed Flow Enhancement and Water Resiliency Regional Framework (VRIF) 
Phase 2, Withdraw Grant Application. (Martinez/Etchart) – Attachment 
Recommended Action: Approve GM sending withdrawal letter. 
 

d) Approval of Potential Grant Funding and Grant Application for the Replacement Treatment Plant. 
(Cooper/Etchart) – Attachment 
Recommended Action: Approve the submittal of the general grant application. 
 

e) Approval of Will-Serve Letter requests for (1)1330 S. La Luna; (2) 190 E. El Roblar; (3) 240-244 
N Arnaz; (4) 234 & 246 S Padre Juan; (5) 569 Tico; (6) 138 S Alvarado. (Martinez/Kentosh) – 
Attachments 
Recommended Action: Consider approval of each Will-Serve Letter request. 
 

f) Approval of migrating District phone and internet services from AT&T to Mitec Solutions. 
(Ward/Martinez) – Attachment 
Recommended Action: Approve migration of phone and internet from AT&T to Mitec Solutions. 
 

g) Approval of Temporary Standby Pay for GM during recruitment and training of replacement 
Utility Worker I/II, not to exceed six months. (Martinez) – Attachment 
Recommended Action: Approval of temporary standby pay for GM not to exceed six months. 
 

h) Approval of a budget transfer of $11,000 from System Maintenance to Meters to purchase an 
initial 35 smart meters not to exceed $33,000. (Martinez) – Attachment 
Recommended Action: Approve transferring $11,000 budgeted funds from System Maintenance 
to Meters and purchase 35 smart meters not exceeding $33,000. 

8. General Manager’s Report 
The Board will receive an update from the General Manager on District operations and 
maintenance. 
 

Page 2 of 139



Agenda, Regular Board Meeting                                             February 21, 2023   
 

9. Board Secretary’s Report  
The Board will receive an update from the Board Secretary on District administrative and 
related matters. 
 

10. Board Committee Reports    

• Executive & Personnel Committee 

• Upper Ventura River Groundwater Agency 

• Allocation, New Meters & Expansion of Services Committee 

• Budget & Rate Committee 

• Grants Committee 

• Emergency Management Committee 

• Treatment Plant Design Ad Hoc Committee  

 

11. Old Business  

• State Water update 
• Matilija Dam removal update 
• Collaboration on drought response measures. 

 

12. Director Announcements/Reports 
 

13. Adjournment: The next scheduled Regular Board meeting is March 21, 2023. 

Page 3 of 139



   
 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
January 17, 2023 

  

 

Regular Meeting        Meiners Oaks Water District 

January 17, 2023        202 W. El Roblar Drive 

6:00 pm         Ojai, CA 93023-2211 

Minutes 
The meeting was called to order at 6:00 pm. 

1. Call to Order  

The meeting was called to order by the Board President, Mike Etchart, at 6:00 pm via 
teleconference. 

2. Roll Call 

Present: Board President, Mike Etchart, Board Directors: James Kentosh, Joe Pangea, 
and Christy Cooper. Staff Present: General Manager, Justin Martinez, and Board 
Secretary, Summer Ward. Attorney Present: Stuart Nielson.  

Absent: Christian Oakland 

3. Approval of the Minutes 

Approval of December 20, 2022, Regular Board Meeting minutes. 

Director Cooper made the motion to approve the December 20, 2022, Regular meeting 
minutes. Director Pangea seconded the motion. 

No Public Comment. 

Cooper/Pangea 

Roll Call Vote:  

Etchart - Y     Kentosh - Y Oakland – A  Pangea – Y  Cooper - Y 

(4) Ayes- M/S/C 

(1) Absent - Oakland 

4. Public Comments  
• None 

5. Closed Session: The Board of Directors held a closed session to discuss litigation, 
pursuant to the attorney/client privilege, as authorized by Government Code 
Sections Ş54957 & 54956.8, 54956.9, and 54957.  
• State case: SBCK vs. SWRCB, San Francisco Supreme Court, Case# CPF-14-513875 

The Board did hold a Closed Session. 

 

Page 4 of 139



   
 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
January 17, 2023 

  

 

6. Financial Matters 

Approval of Payroll and Payables from December 16, 2022, to January 15, 2023, in 
the amount of: 

Payables:   $121,445.25 

Payroll:   $  48,355.82 

Total:             $169,801.07 

Director Kentosh made the motion to the Payroll and Payables from December 16, 2022, to 
January 15, 2023. Director Pangea seconded the motion. 

No Public Comment. 

Kentosh/Pangea 

Roll Call Vote:  

Etchart - Y    Kentosh - Y Oakland – A  Pangea – Y  Cooper- Y 

(4) Ayes – M/S/C 

(1) Absent - Oakland 

7. Board Discussion/Actions 
 

a. Election of the Board Officers. (Etchart) 
Director Kentosh made the motion to nominate Director Etchart to the position of Board 
President for one year. Director Cooper seconded the motion. 

No Public Comment. 

Kentosh/Cooper 

Roll Call Vote:  

Etchart – Y      Kentosh – Y      Oakland – A Pangea – Y  Cooper – Y  

(4) Ayes – M/S/C 

(1) Absent – Oakland 

 

Director Etchart stated that he spoke to Director Oakland prior to the meeting, and 
Director Oakland is open to continuing as Vice President. 
 
Director Cooper made the motion to nominate Director Oakland to the position of Board 
Vice President for one year. Director Pangea seconded the motion. 

No Public Comment. 

Page 5 of 139



   
 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
January 17, 2023 

  

 

Cooper/Pangea 

Roll Call Vote:  

Etchart – Y      Kentosh – Y      Oakland – A Pangea – Y  Cooper – Y  

(4) Ayes – M/S/C 

(1) Absent - Oakland 

b. Board Committee Membership. (Etchart)  
Director Etchart reviewed the existing Board Committee Membership and District 
Representatives. The Board agreed on the Committee assignments. 2023 Committee 
Membership: (1) Executive Committee: Etchart & Oakland; (2) Budget & Rates: 
Oakland & Cooper; (3) Allocation, New Meters & Expansion of Services: Kentosh & 
Pangea; (4) Emergency & Safety: Oakland & Pangea; (5) Grants: Cooper & Etchart; (6) 
Ad Hoc Treatment Plant Funding & Design: Kentosh & Cooper. Board Representatives: 
(1) UVRGA: Etchart & Alternate Kentosh; (2) Ventura River Watershed Council: Cooper 
& Alternate Martinez; (3) Matilija Dam Removal: Martinez; (4) Adjudication Mediation 
Principals: Cooper, Kentosh & Alternate Etchart. Ms. Ward will reach out to each 
Committee to set up meetings.  

No Public Comment. 

No Motion. 
 

c. Approval of Resolution 20230117: Adoption of Board Bylaws. (Etchart/Nielson)  

Ms. Ward presented the proposed updates to the Board Bylaws, noting they have not 
been updated in over ten years. Attorney Stuart Nielson prepared the update to include 
legal and regulatory requirements and reformatted the document. Director Kentosh had 
some recommended changes and a few questions that he will send to Attorney Nielson 
and Staff. The Board agreed to send the Bylaws update to the Executive Committee to 
review Director Kentosh’s recommendations. Then, it will bring the Bylaws and 
resolution back to the Board for adoption. 

No Public Comment. 

No Motion. 

d. Status update on Will-Serve Letter request for 935 Devereux. (Martinez)  

Mr. Martinez reviewed the Will-Serve request, as it was presented at the December 20, 
2022, regular meeting. The homeowner lives out of the area and is proposing a garage 
conversion to an ADU but lacks the variable allocation. Additionally, the homeowner 
states that he is disabled and would like to use the ADU for himself and rent out the 
primary dwelling. The Board asked Attorney Nielson to review the Americans with 
Disabilities Act for any reason why an exemption to the policy should be granted to this 

Page 6 of 139



   
 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
January 17, 2023 

  

 

homeowner. Attorney Nielson reported that no such requirement exists in the ADA, and 
he recommended the Board follow the District policy with regard to this Will-Serve 
request. Mr. Martinez agreed with Attorney Nielson and recommended not granting the 
Will-Serve Letter at this time. Instead, Mr. Martinez will provide the homeowner with the 
policy language that describes what happens when Casitas Lake Levels are at or above 
50%; the owner may have an opportunity to purchase additional allocation at a future 
time per the policy. 

 
8. General Manager's Report 

Mr. Martinez reported that the Casitas Lake level is 41%; MOWD continues to purchase 
water from Casitas due to the proximity of the surface water from the river to the wells, 
per state regulations. Mr. Martinez stated that he anticipates returning to the wells very 
soon. Seasonal rainfall totals: Casitas Dam 26", Matilija Dam 41", Stewart Canyon 
21.5", and Nordhoff Ridge 47". There have been some notable increases in the water 
levels. The District received the VRIF-2 Grant Agreement, which the Committee and 
Attorney Nielson will review before bringing it to the Board. The GIS mapping of the 
District has been completed by staff, who are in the process of attaching detailed asset 
information to each mapped item. Work continues on the Treatment Plant Design and 
Well Sighting Study.  

No Public Comment. 

9. Board Secretary's Report 

Ms. Ward presented the monthly Board Secretary report highlighting that the District 
submitted its annual State Waterboard Water Use Report. Ms. Ward noted that 
Kennedy Communications are calculating Income Surveys responses; additional 
surveys were mailed out earlier in the month and will help the District meet the minimum 
response rate required by the State. Ms. Ward reported that staff is evaluating the 
transition and consolidation of phone and internet services, moving away from AT&T to 
Mitec Solutions, the District’s current IT services vendor. Ms. Ward will present a staff 
report with related expenses at the next board meeting. Director Pangea offered 
assistance with the planning for the transition to VoIP. Director Cooper recommended 
keeping at least one landline or adding a satellite phone for emergencies.  

No Public Comment. 

10. Board Committee Reports 
• Executive & Personnel Committee: No report. 
• UVRGA: No report. 
• Budget/Rate Committee: No report. 
• Emergency Management Committee: No report.  
• Allocations, New Meters & Expansion of Services Committee: No report. 
• Grants: No report. 

Page 7 of 139



   
 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
January 17, 2023 

  

 

• Treatment Plant Design Ad Hoc Committee: No report. 
 

11. Old Business 
• State Water: No update.   
• Matilija Dam Removal Update: No update. 
• Collaboration on drought response measures: No update. 

 
12. Director Announcements/Reports 

• Director Kentosh: No report.  
• Director Oakland: Absent. 
• Director Pangea: No report. 
• Director Cooper: No report.  
• Director Etchart: No report.   

13. Meeting Adjournment 

There being no further business to conduct at this time, Board President Mike Etchart 
adjourned the meeting at 7:38 pm. 

 

     ____________________________   _____________________________ 

     Board Secretary                   Board President 

Page 8 of 139



Page 9 of 139



Page 10 of 139



Page 11 of 139



Page 12 of 139



Page 13 of 139



Page 14 of 139



$0.00

$50,000.00

$100,000.00

$150,000.00

$200,000.00

$250,000.00

$300,000.00

$350,000.00

Ja
n-

19

M
ar

-1
9

M
ay

-1
9

Ju
l-1

9

Se
p-

19

N
ov

-1
9

Ja
n-

20

M
ar

-2
0

M
ay

-2
0

Ju
l-2

0

Se
p-

20

N
ov

-2
0

Ja
n-

21

M
ar

-2
1

M
ay

-2
1

Ju
l-2

1

Se
p-

21

N
ov

-2
1

Ja
n-

22

M
ar

-2
2

M
ay

-2
2

Ju
l-2

2

Se
p-

22

N
ov

-2
2

Ja
n-

23

Am
ou

nt
 ($

)

MOWD Monthly Expenses Expenses

Capital

Total Expense

1/19 - Wells

12/19 - Gen & Panels

7/2020 Z-2 6" relocation

$0.00

$50,000.00

$100,000.00

$150,000.00

$200,000.00

$250,000.00

$300,000.00

$350,000.00

Ja
n-

19

M
ar

-1
9

M
ay

-1
9

Ju
l-1

9

Se
p-

19

N
ov

-1
9

Ja
n-

20

M
ar

-2
0

M
ay

-2
0

Ju
l-2

0

Se
p-

20

N
ov

-2
0

Ja
n-

21

M
ar

-2
1

M
ay

-2
1

Ju
l-2

1

Se
p-

21

N
ov

-2
1

Ja
n-

22

M
ar

-2
2

M
ay

-2
2

Ju
l-2

2

Se
p-

22

N
ov

-2
2

Ja
n-

23

Am
ou

nt
 ($

)

MOWD Income & Expenses Total Expense

Income

GSA, Tx Plant design, 
memberships

Page 15 of 139



 

 
 
 
 
 

Resolution 20230221 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF MEINERS OAKS WATER 
DISTRICT ADOPTING REVISED AND UPDATED BOARD BYLAWS 

 
WHEREAS, the Meiners Oaks Water District (“District”) is a special district organized and operating 
under the County Water District Law, California Water Code Section 30000 et seq. (hereinafter, the 
“Act”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the District has authority pursuant to the Act and other applicable law to adopt and 
enforce policies, rules and regulations for the administration of the District; and 
 
WHEREAS, the current Bylaws of the District were last amended by the District’s Board of Directors 
(“Board”) in 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board wishes to revise and update the Bylaws at this time; and 
 
WHEREAS, at its meeting on January 17, 2023, the Board reviewed the proposed revised and 
updated Bylaws. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Board of Directors hereby resolves as follows: 
 

1. BE IT RESOLVED that the Board does hereby approve and adopt the Bylaws in the form 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, to become effective immediately. 
 

2. RESOLVED FURTHER that the attached Bylaws replace and supersede in their entirety all 
previously adopted Bylaws of the District, and all such previously adopted Bylaws are hereby 
repealed. 

 
Passed, Approved, and Adopted this 21st day of February 2023 by a majority vote of the members of 
the Board, as follows: 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 
 
 
_________________________    _________________________ 
Board Secretary      Board President 
Summer Ward      Michel Etchart 

Page 16 of 139



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MEINERS OAKS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
BYLAWS 

 
 
 
 

(Adopted: February 21, 2023)

Page 17 of 139



1 
 

BYLAWS 
MEINERS OAKS WATER DISTRICT 

ARTICLE I. NAME 

Section 1.01 Name. The name of this organization is MEINERS OAKS WATER DISTRICT, 
formerly known as Meiners Oaks County Water District (hereinafter referred to as the 
“District”).  The District is a California special district formed in 1949 and operating 
under the provisions of the County Water District Law, Water Code Section 30000 et 
seq. (hereinafter, the “Act”). 

ARTICLE II. PURPOSE AND FUNCTION 

Section 2.01 Purpose and Powers. The District is an independent special district established in 
accordance with and having the authority and powers as set forth in the Act.  The 
mission of the District is to deliver a safe, reliable and sustainable supply of water to 
meet the needs of the residents and properties within the District’s service area.  To that 
end, the District maintains and operates both water procuring and water distribution 
systems. 

Section 2.02 Territory. A map of the District and its boundaries is attached hereto as Attachment 1. 

Section 2.03 Principal Office. The District’s administrative office shall be located at 202 W. El 
Roblar Drive, Ojai, California, or at such other place as the Board of Directors shall 
determine. 

ARTICLE III. GOVERNING BODY 

Section 3.01 Board of Directors. The Board of Directors (hereinafter, the “Board”) is the governing 
body of the District and the powers of the District shall, except as otherwise provided 
in the Act, be exercised by and under the direction of the Board.  The Board receives its 
power from the California Constitution and State laws passed by the legislature, 
including the Act.  State law takes precedence if a conflict occurs between State law and 
these Bylaws or any action by the Board. 

Section 3.02 Number and Qualifications. The Board shall consist of five (5) Directors, each 
representing the District as a whole, and each of whom shall be a voter and resident of 
the District and otherwise qualified to hold office as provided in the Act and other 
applicable law. In accordance with Section 30508 of the Act, if a Director’s place of 
residence, as defined in Section 244 of the Government Code, is moved outside the 
District’s boundaries, and if within one hundred eighty (180) days of the move the 
Director fails to reestablish a place of residence within the District, it shall be presumed 
that a permanent change of residence has occurred and that a vacancy exists on the 
Board pursuant to Section 1770 of the Government Code.  

Section 3.03 Elections. 

A. Election.  Board member elections are conducted in the manner provided in the 
Act and in accordance with the Uniform District Election Law, Elections Code 

Page 18 of 139



2 
 

Section 10500 et seq.  Elections are held in even-numbered years in November 
and are consolidated with the County of Ventura general election.  Board 
members serve four (4) year terms that are staggered so that every two years 
elections are held for either three or two of the seats on the Board.  The terms of 
newly-elected Directors, following election, begin as determined and provided 
for in Section 10554 of the Elections Code.  

B. Term of Office.  The term of office for each member of the Board is four (4) 
years.  A member’s term can be terminated by his or her resignation, removal, 
or disqualification from office. 

C. Vacancies.  Vacancies on the Board shall be filled for the unexpired term as 
provided in Government Code Section 1780. 

Section 3.04 Oath of Office.  Each Director elected or appointed to the Board shall, before entering 
upon the duties of his or her office, take and subscribe the following oath of office and 
file it with the Board Secretary:  

“I, [state name], do solemnly swear (or affirm) that I will support and 
defend the Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of the 
State of California against all enemies, foreign and domestic; that I will 
bear true faith and allegiance to the Constitution of the United States 
and the Constitution of the State of California; that I take this obligation 
freely, without any mental reservation or purpose of evasion; and that 
I will well and faithfully discharge the duties upon which I am about to 
enter.” 

Section 3.05 Board Compensation.  Directors shall be compensated for each day’s attendance at 
meetings of the Board and meetings of District committees, and for each day’s service 
rendered as a member of the Board by request of the Board, as provided in the District’s 
Director Compensation Ordinance (Ord. No. 22-01-18) and the District’s Board 
Compensation Policy, as the same may be amended from time to time. 

ARTICLE IV. ETHICS GUIDELINES FOR BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Section 4.01 Act in the Public Interest.  Directors must recognize that stewardship of the public 
interest must be their primary concern. Directors will work for the common good of the 
people of the District and not for any private or personal interest, and they will assure 
fair and equal treatment of all persons, claims and transactions coming before the Board. 

Section 4.02 Comply with the Law.  Directors shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local 
laws and regulations in the performance of their public duties. These laws include, but 
are not limited to: the United States and California Constitutions; California Political 
Reform Act of 1974 (Gov. Code Sections 87100-87500) and corresponding Fair 
Political Practices Commission regulations (Title 2 Calif. Code of Regs., Section 18701 
et seq.); laws pertaining to conflicts of interest, election campaigns, financial 
disclosures, employer responsibilities, Brown Act Open Meetings Law (Gov. Code 
Section 54950 et seq.), Public Records Act (Gov. Code Section 6250 et seq.), AB 1234 

Page 19 of 139



3 
 

(Local agencies: ethics; Stats. 2005, ch. 700) and AB 1661 (Local governments: sexual 
harassment prevention training and education; Stats. 2016, ch. 816). 

Section 4.03 Conduct of Directors. The professional and personal conduct of Directors must be above 
reproach and avoid even the appearance of impropriety. Directors shall refrain from 
abusive conduct, personal charges or verbal attacks upon the character or motives of 
other Directors, District staff, other public agencies, representatives of other public 
agencies, and the public. 

A. Duty of Care.  A Director must pay attention to organization matters and 
participate fully in Board review and decision-making. He or she must exercise 
the care that an ordinarily prudent person would exercise in a like position and 
under similar circumstances. 

B. Duty of Loyalty. A Director must put the needs of the organization ahead of any 
personal interest when making decisions affecting the District and may not use 
information obtained as a Director for personal gain. A Director must always 
maintain confidentiality regarding confidential District operations and business. 

C. Duty of Obedience. A Director must be faithful to the District’s mission and may 
not act in a manner that is inconsistent with this mission. This requirement is 
based on the public trust afforded to governmental entities, and the assumption 
that the agency will manage constituent funds in fulfillment of the District’s 
statutory purpose. 

D. Fiduciary Duty. A Director has a fiduciary (i.e., “one who must exercise a high 
standard of care in managing another’s money or property” (Black’s Law 
Dictionary, 10th ed., p. 743)) duty to the organization and is responsible for 
assuring the District’s fiscal health. 

Section 4.04 Respect for Process. Directors shall perform their duties in accordance with the 
processes and rules of order established in these Bylaws. 

Section 4.05 Conduct at Public Meetings. Directors shall be prepared to attend and participate at 
Board meetings and Board committee meetings; listen courteously and attentively to all 
public discussions before the body; and focus on the business at hand. They shall refrain 
from interrupting other speakers; making personal comments not germane to the 
business of the body; or otherwise interfering with the orderly conduct of meetings. 

Section 4.06 Decisions Based on Merit. Directors shall base their decisions on the merits and 
substance of the matter at hand, rather than on unrelated considerations. 

Section 4.07 Communication. Directors shall publicly share substantive information that is relevant 
to a matter under consideration by the Board which they may have received ex parte 
from sources outside of the public decision-making or public hearing process. 

Section 4.08 Conflict of Interest. To ensure their independence and impartiality on behalf of the 
common good, Directors shall not use their official positions to influence government 
decisions in which they have a material financial interest as defined by California law.  

Page 20 of 139



4 
 

In accordance with governing law, Directors shall disclose investments, interests in real 
property, sources of income, and gifts; and they shall abstain from participating in 
deliberations and decision-making where conflicts may exist pursuant to Federal and 
California laws. 

Section 4.09 Gifts and Favors. Directors shall not take any special advantage of services or 
opportunities for personal gain, because of their public office, that are not available to 
the public in general. They shall refrain from accepting any gifts, favors or promises of 
future benefits which might compromise their independence of judgment or action or 
give the appearance of being compromised. 

Section 4.10 Confidential Information. Directors shall respect the confidentiality of information 
concerning the property, personnel or affairs of the District that they learn or receive 
from their interactions with other Board members, staff, or legal counsel outside of a 
public meeting, especially for those matters discussed and acted upon in closed session. 
Directors shall not disclose confidential information unless required to fulfill their 
fiduciary duty. Nor shall they disclose confidential information to advance their 
personal, financial or other private interest. 

Section 4.11 Representation of Private Interests. In keeping with their role as stewards of the public 
interest, Directors shall not appear on behalf of the private interests of third parties 
before the Board. 

Section 4.12 Advocacy. Directors shall represent the official policies of the District to the best of 
their ability when designated as representatives or delegates for this purpose. When 
presenting or communicating their individual opinions and positions to the public or to 
other agencies or agency staff, Directors shall: (a) explicitly state that they do not 
represent the District or the Board; (b) explicitly state that their views do not reflect the 
views of the District or the Board; (c) explicitly state that their opinions and positions 
are theirs alone; and (d) not allow any inference that they are speaking or acting as 
District or Board representatives. 

Section 4.13 Policy Role of Directors. The primary roles of the Directors are policy setting and policy 
review. Directors shall not participate in, interfere with, nor direct the daily 
administrative functions of the District or the professional duties of District staff or 
consultants; nor shall they impair the ability of District staff to implement Board policy 
decisions. Due to the small size of the District’s staff, a Board member may from time 
to time provide support to staff. In those instances, the Director shall work closely with 
the General Manager and/or Board Secretary, and with the knowledge and consent of 
the Board. A Board member shall not attempt to circumvent Board direction by 
attempting to influence others outside of a public Board meeting. 

Section 4.14 Positive Workplace Environment. Directors shall support the maintenance of a positive 
and constructive workplace environment for District employees and for citizens and 
businesses dealing with the District. Directors shall recognize their special role in 
dealings with District employees and shall not provide direct or indirect direction to 
staff other than the General Manager or the Board Secretary. 

Page 21 of 139



5 
 

ARTICLE V. OFFICERS OF THE BOARD 

Section 5.01 Titles and Functions.  The officers of the Board shall consist of the following, who shall 
be elected or appointed by the Board in the manner provided in the Act:  

A. President.  The President shall preside at all meetings of the Board, have general 
supervision of the affairs of the Board, represent the Board in any actions taken 
by the Board, be an ex officio member of all Board committees, sign all contracts 
on behalf of the District, and perform such other duties and have such other 
powers and authority as prescribed by these Bylaws or as provided in the Act. 

B. Vice-President.  The Vice-President shall assist the President in performance of 
his or her duties and in his or her stead when required. 

C. Board Secretary.  The Board Secretary shall attest to all resolutions and 
ordinances adopted by the Board, countersign all contracts on behalf of the 
District, and perform such other duties and have such other powers and authority 
as imposed by the Board, as prescribed by these Bylaws, or as provided in the 
Act.    

Section 5.02 Terms of Board Officers. 

A. Length of Term.  The terms of all officers shall be from the date of their election 
by the Board for the following approximately one year period when elections 
are held again.  Any officer can be re-elected to continue in the same office. 

B. Vacancies.  If the President fails to complete his or her term, the Vice-President 
shall act in his or her stead and a new Vice-President shall be elected for the 
remainder of the term.  If the Vice-President fails to complete his or her term, 
the Board shall elect a Board member to serve as Vice-President for the 
remainder of the term. If the Secretary fails to complete his or her term, the 
Board shall appoint a new Secretary to serve for the remainder of the term. 

Section 5.03 Board Office Election/Appointment Process. 

A. President and Vice-President Election Process.  At its regular meeting held in 
the month of January of each year, the Board shall elect one of its members as 
President and one of its members as Vice-President.  

B. Appointment of Board Secretary.  At its regular meeting held in the month of 
January of each year, the Board shall appoint, by majority vote, the Board 
Secretary in the manner provided in the Act.  A Director may not serve as the 
Secretary.   

C. Assumption of Duties.  Officers shall assume the duties of their offices 
immediately following completion of the election or appointment process for all 
offices. 

Page 22 of 139



6 
 

ARTICLE VI. MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Section 6.01 Time and Place. Regular meetings of the Board shall be held on the third (3rd) Tuesday 
of each month, or as otherwise set by resolution of the Board.  All meetings shall be 
conducted pursuant to and in compliance with the provisions of Government Code 
Section 54950 et seq., commonly known as the Brown Act. 

Section 6.02 Agenda.  

A. Formation, review and finalization of the agenda for each regular or special 
Board meeting shall be the joint responsibility of the Board President, General 
Manager, Board Secretary, and District legal counsel. 

B. For any agenda item that is complex or introduces topics unfamiliar to the Board, 
or for which the General Manager otherwise determines that a written staff 
report would be beneficial to the Board’s review and discussion of the item, the 
General Manager shall prepare or direct the preparation of a written staff report 
or Board letter/memorandum that will explain the agenda item, indicate the 
fiscal impact, if any, of the agenda item, and clearly indicate a recommended 
action to be taken by the Board. 

C. The Board Secretary shall be responsible for complying with all applicable 
requirements for preparing, posting, mailing, emailing, and otherwise 
distributing each Board meeting agenda as required by the Brown Act. 

D. The Board President, or acting President, may make changes in the order of the 
items on the Board agenda unless a two-thirds vote of the Board members in 
attendance defeats the decision of the President. 

E. In accordance with Government Code Section 54954.2(a)(3), any Board 
member may request an item be placed on a future Board meeting agenda for 
discussion or action. The Board President, in cooperation with the District 
General Manager, shall determine when and how such a request for an item to 
be placed on a Board meeting agenda will be accomplished. When a Board 
member requests that a certain matter be placed on a future Board meeting 
agenda, its actual placement on a future Board meeting agenda shall depend 
upon several factors including, but not limited to: existing Board priorities, 
agenda items already in progress for placement on the Board meeting agenda, 
work load of affected District staff responsible for preparing a Board letter or 
memorandum on the subject as determined by the General Manager, and District 
Board consensus to place the matter on a future agenda.  

F. Emergency items can only be added pursuant to the provisions set forth in 
Government Code Section 54954.2. 

G. Members of the public may request to have an item placed on a future Board 
agenda during the public comment portion of a Board meeting.  The President 

Page 23 of 139



7 
 

shall ask if any Board member supports this request.  If there is support, the 
General Manager will be directed to place the item on a future Board agenda. 

Section 6.03 Quorum. A majority of the current Board membership shall constitute a quorum. A 
majority of the Board members voting shall be required to approve, disapprove or 
otherwise act on any proposal, except matters requiring action by a specific number or 
percentage of the full Board as required by statute. A tie vote shall constitute a denial. 

Section 6.04 Record of Proceedings. 

A. Recordings. All Board meetings shall be either audio or video-recorded and 
these recordings may be destroyed once the written minutes are prepared and 
approved by the Board, but in any event no less than thirty (30) days after the 
recording or for such additional period of time as may otherwise be required by 
law or District policy. 

B. Written Minutes of Board Meetings. The Board Secretary shall prepare for 
approval by the Board minutes recording all resolutions, ordinances, actions, 
and determinations of the Board.  Minutes shall contain mainly a record of what 
was done at the meeting, not what was said by the Board members, staff or 
public. Robert’s Rules of Order (11th Ed.), Section 48. 

C. Official Signatures. All papers involving official acts of the Board shall be 
signed in accordance with appropriate legislation relating to such acts. In the 
absence of specific regulations, the signature of the President or Vice-President 
attested by the Board Secretary shall be deemed sufficient. 

Section 6.05 Order of Business.  Subject to the authority of the President to make changes to the 
order of the agenda as provided in Section 6.02.C above, the preferred order of business 
shall generally be as follows: 

a.  Call to Order 
b. Roll Call 
c.  Agenda Review 
d.  Approval of Prior Meeting Minutes 
e.  Public Comment for Items Not Appearing on the Agenda 
f.  Closed Session Agenda 
g.  Regular Agenda 
h.  Public Hearings 
i.  General Manager Informational Report on District Operations 
j. Board Secretary’s Report 
k. Committee Reports 
j.  Old Business/Information Items 
k.  Director Announcements/Reports 
l.  Adjournment 

Section 6.06 Closed Sessions. The Board may meet in closed session in accordance with the Brown 
Act. 

Page 24 of 139



8 
 

Section 6.07 Amendments or Additions to the Agenda. Government Code Section 54954.2 provides 
that no action or discussion shall be undertaken on any item not appearing on the posted 
agenda, with certain specific exceptions. Subject to such specified exceptions, other 
amendments or additions to the agenda that are considered by the Board during Agenda 
Review shall be limited to removal, rearrangement, or movement of items that are 
included in the agenda between categories, or addition of informational items.  

Section 6.08 Adjournment.  The Board may adjourn any regular, adjourned regular, special, or 
adjourned special meeting to a time and place specified in the order of adjournment, 
pursuant to Government Code Section 54955. 

Section 6.09 Temporary President. In the absence of the President or Vice-President 15 minutes after 
the noticed time of any meeting of the Board, the Board Secretary shall convene the 
meeting and the Board shall elect a temporary President to conduct such meeting. Upon 
arrival of the President or Vice-President, the higher ranking regular officer shall 
become the presiding officer and conduct such meeting. 

Section 6.10 Rules of Order for Board and Board Committee Meetings. 

A. To the fullest extent practicable, the Board shall follow the latest edition of 
Robert’s Rules of Order Newly Revised in the conduct of all Board and Board 
Committee business. If a conflict should arise between these Bylaws and 
Robert’s Rules of Order Newly Revised, the latter shall take precedence over the 
former. 

B. To obtain the floor, a Director, staff member or public attendee must be directly 
recognized by the President. 

C. The Director making a motion shall clearly state the action or actions desired. 

D. A motion may be amended, prior to the vote, if the first & second on that motion 
agree to the amendment. 

E. A Board member who voted with the prevailing side on a question previously 
considered by the Board, may, prior to the adjournment of the meeting where 
such question was considered, move that the Board reconsider the vote on that 
question. Any member may second the motion to reconsider. If a majority of the 
Board votes in favor of the motion to reconsider, the question will be reheard 
before the Board. A motion to reconsider made at the same meeting has 
precedence over every main motion, and may be taken up at any time during the 
meeting if there is no other motion on the floor. Upon adoption, a motion for 
reconsideration cancels the previous vote on the question as though the previous 
vote had never taken place. 

F. If, after the adjournment of a meeting where a question was previously 
considered, a Board member who voted with the prevailing side on that question 
requests reconsideration of the question, a motion for reconsideration will be 

Page 25 of 139



9 
 

placed on the agenda of the Board’s next scheduled meeting. At that next 
scheduled meeting, any member may second the motion to reconsider. If a 
majority of the Board votes in favor of the motion to reconsider, the question 
will be reheard before the Board. Upon adoption, a motion for reconsideration 
cancels the previous vote on the question as though the previous vote had never 
taken place. 

G. Agenda items which shall require a roll call vote are: 

a)  Contracts or any action involving the expenditure of over $10,000 
of District funds; 

b)  Board resolutions; 
c)  Quasi-legislative matters; and 
d)  Quasi-adjudicatory matters. 

H. All other Board votes on other Board meeting agenda items may be conducted 
by voice vote, (i.e., signifying affirmative or negative). The Board Secretary 
shall publicly report any action taken in the minutes and the vote or abstention 
on that action of each member present. 

Section 6.11 Public Hearings. Public hearings will be conducted as follows: 

1. Open public hearing 
2. Receive staff report and recommendations 
3. Report of written communications by Board Secretary 
4. Public comment 
5. Close public hearing 
6. Discussion by Board of Directors 

Further input by the public after the close of the public hearing shall be at the discretion 
of the Board President. 

The formal rules of evidence applicable to an action at law shall not apply to hearings 
before the Board.  The only rule that shall govern the admissibility or the reception of evidence is the 
requirement that the offered evidence have some reasonable tendency to explain or shed light on the 
matter at issue. 

The testimony and argument of all persons appearing before the Board shall be limited 
to a reasonable time as determined by the Board President. 

ARTICLE VII.  BOARD COMMITTEES 

Section 7.01 Establishment of Committees. The President may appoint such standing or temporary 
(ad hoc) committees as he or she deems appropriate and shall appoint, with the advice 
and consent of the Board, the members of committees from among the members of the 
Board.  Committees shall be composed solely of members of the Board that are less 
than a quorum of the Board.  All Board committees are advisory to the Board and thus 

Page 26 of 139



10 
 

are not binding on the Board.   

Section 7.02 Committee Meetings.  Committee meetings are public and subject to the requirements 
of the Brown Act.  The committee meeting schedule shall be mutually determined by 
the committee membership.  Committee meetings cannot be held without a majority of 
the committee membership present.  If a committee member is unable to attend a 
scheduled committee meeting, it is the member’s responsibility to notify the General 
Manager and Board Secretary at the earliest time possible. The attendance of a majority 
of the members of the Board at an open and noticed meeting of a standing committee of 
the District shall not constitute a meeting of the Board, provided that the members of 
the Board who are not also members of the committee attend only as observers.  
However, participation by a majority of the members of the Board (other than as 
observers, in the case of the non-committee members) in any committee meeting shall 
constitute a meeting of the Board and shall be noticed as a Board meeting in accordance 
with the requirements of the Brown Act.  

Section 7.03 Representation on Other Boards, Committees and Agencies.  The President shall 
appoint individual Directors to serve as the Board’s representative to board, committees 
and agencies outside the District.  The President may appoint himself or herself to serve 
in any of these positions. 

ARTICLE VIII. ADMINISTRATION OF DISTRICT BUSINESS 

Section 8.01 General Manager. The Board of Directors shall appoint a General Manager to 
implement the policies and programs approved by the Board of Directors. The General 
Manager so selected shall meet such minimum qualifications as are established by the 
Board of Directors. The General Manager shall be an “at will” employee and shall serve 
at the pleasure of the Board. 

Section 8.02 Legal Counsel. The Board of Directors shall retain legal counsel to ensure all business 
of the District is conducted and all District Board actions taken conform to all applicable 
federal, state and local laws and regulations. 

Section 8.03 Independent Auditor.  As required by law, the Board shall obtain the services of an 
independent certified public accountant to annually audit the financial books and 
records of the District. Such auditor shall annually present a written report of the 
District’s financial position to the Board of Directors along with a management letter 
containing any observations or comments deemed pertinent. 

Section 8.04 Other Employees.  The General Manager shall appoint such other employees as are 
necessary to carry out the programs and policies of the Board of Directors and shall 
have the authority to execute employment agreements and make appointments pursuant 
to relevant personnel rules and regulations and shall be within the framework of the 
annual budget approved by the Board of Directors. The General Manager shall be the 
primary point of contact with the Board of Directors and individual Directors and shall 
be the intermediary between the Board of Directors and individual Directors and District 

Page 27 of 139



11 
 

staff. 

Section 8.05 Conflict of Interest Code.  All Board Members and covered employees are subject to 
the District’s conflict of interest code and shall file periodic statements as required by 
the Political Reform Act of 1974 (Gov. Code Section 81000 et seq.) and Fair Political 
Practices Commission regulations (2 Calif. Code of Regs., Section 18000 et seq.). 

Section 8.06 Fiscal Matters. Consistent with the provisions of applicable laws of the State of 
California, and the operational needs of the District, the General Manager or his or her 
designee shall be authorized and responsible for the fiscal concerns of the District as 
follows: 

A. District Fiscal Year.  Fiscal Year begins July 1st and ends June 30th. 

B. Budget.  Prepare, for adoption by the Board of Directors prior to July 1st of each 
year, a budget showing anticipated revenues and expenses for personnel, 
services, supplies, equipment and related expenses to perform the purposes and 
goals of the District. The Board-approved annual fiscal year budget shall 
authorize the General Manager and his or her staff to collect and expend funds 
for purposes identified in the adopted budget, as it may be amended by the Board 
of Directors from time to time. The General Manager shall control expenditures 
to be within the specific categories and purposes in the adopted or amended 
budget and within the available funds on hand and revenues received. 

C. Finance Management.  As authorized by the Board, the General Manager will 
direct the collection and disbursement of all monies into and out of the District 
treasury. The General Manager is authorized to make investments and open and 
close bank accounts as necessary to conduct the business of the District and in 
accordance with the District’s current investment policy adopted by the Board. 

D. Purchasing Authority. The General Manager has the authority to procure labor, 
supplies, services and equipment as necessary in accordance with policies 
established by the Board of Directors. 

E. Annual Audits. The General Manager shall arrange for entrance and exit 
interviews with the independent auditor as directed by the Board. 

The General Manager is responsible for annually submitting financial reports to 
the State Controller’s office (State Controller’s Report) in accordance with 
Government Code Section 53891. 

The independent auditor is to be instructed to provide the Board of Directors 
with access to all correspondence related to the audit, simultaneously submitting 
copies of such correspondence to the General Manager and the Board Secretary. 

F. Statement of Investment Policy. The General Manager is responsible to present 
to the Board, for review and approval, an annual Statement of Investment Policy 

Page 28 of 139



12 
 

in accordance with Government Code Section 53646. 

G. Reimbursement Disclosure. The General Manager is responsible for a report 
being published, at least annually, to disclose any reimbursement paid by the 
District of at least one hundred dollars ($100) for each individual charge for 
services or product received, in accordance with Government Code Section 
53065.5. 

ARTICLE IX. ADOPTION AND AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS 

These Bylaws are adopted by resolution and become effective on February 21, 2023. Proposed 
amendments shall be presented in writing at a regular meeting of the Board and may be adopted at the 
next regular meeting, provided at least fourteen (14) days have elapsed since the first meeting.  
Amendments shall be approved by resolution of the Board.  

Changes to the District’s boundary map due to annexations or detachments, and changes to the sections 
of laws referenced, and any changes to these Bylaws by reason of a change in the District’s principal act 
or other State law affecting the District, shall be automatically incorporated as part of this document 
without the need for specific amendment following such changes. 

Page 29 of 139



MIENERS OAKS WATER DISTRICT 

Board Member Reference Guide 

Resolution 081611-1 

Meiners Oaks Water District 

08/16/2011 

The mission of Meiners Oaks Water District and its staff is 
to produce and deliver a reliable and sustainable supply of 
water to meet the needs of the residents and properties and 
the community within its boundaries. 

Page 30 of 139



Table of Contents 

Board Members BYLAWS ............................................................ .. ..... .......... ... .. ....... .. .. .. 3 

MEINERS OAKS WATER DISTRICT. ................................. .. ... .... .. ... .. ........... ........ ........ . 3 

Article I. NAME ... ......... .... .. .. .... ......... ... .. ... ..... ... ..... ....... ............. .... ..... ... .......... ... ...... .. 3 

Article II. HISTORY .. .... ...................................................... ....... ... ... .. ....... ... ............ .. .... .. 3 

Article Ill. MISSION AND OBJECTIVES ...... ...................... .. .. ............. .... ................ .. .... .. 3 

Article IV. TERRITORY .............................. .. ..................... .... .... ..... ... .. ... ... ... ................... 3 

Article V. PLACE OF BUSINESS ....................................... .... .......... ..... ................ ......... . 3 

Article VI. GOVERNING BOARD ................. .... ................... .... ... ...... ..... .. ........................ 3 

Article VII. POWERS ........................... ............................ ....... ............. ..... ................... .. .. 3 

Section 1. Ethics Guidelines ........... ....... .................. ...... .. ...... ............ ........ ... .. ..... .. . 5 

Section 2. Number of Directors ........ ... ....................... .... ......... ... .. ........ ............ ..... .. 7 

Section 3. Vacancies and Appointments ..... ................ .............................. .. .. ... ...... . 7 

Section 4. Elections ...................... ...... .. ...................... ........... ........ .. ... ............ ... ... .. 7 

Section 5. Board Compensation ........... .................... ... ... .. ............................. ... ... ... 8 

Article VIII. OFFICERS OF THE BOARD ........................... ..... ......... .. ... ..... .... ........... ..... . 8 

Section 1. Titles and Functions ........................... ...... .. ........ ... ................ ........ ... ..... . 8 

Section 2. Terms of Office .. .............. ... .. .... ...... ........ .. ........ .... ............................... .. 9 

Section 3. Office Elections ...... ... ......... ... ........... ..... ... .... ........ .... ....... ..... ..... ..... ....... . 9 

Article IX. MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ....... .... .......... ... .. ........ .. ... .. ... 10 

Section 1. Time and Place ............................................. .. .............. ... ...... .. .. ... ...... . 10 

Section 2. Agenda ..................... ......... .... .. .. ............... .... " .. ... ... ........... .... .. ... ........ . 10 

Section 3. Quorum ............................. .......... ............. .............. .. .......... .................. 11 

Section 4. Special Meetings .................... ........... .... ... ... ........... ........... ............ ....... 11 

Article X. RECORDS OF PROCEEDINGS ................... ........... ..... ........... ....... ..... ...... 11 

Section 1. Recordings ......................... .. .................... .... .. .... ........... ..... .. ....... ... .... .. 11 

Section 2. Written Minutes .................. ... ................... ........... .. .. ... ..... ........ .. ... .. .. .... 11 

Section 3. Official Signatures .............. ... ... ................ .......... ................... .. ... ..... ..... 12 

Section 4. Public Records Act Policy ...... .................. ........ ....... .. ..... ...... ..... ........... 12 

Article XI. RULES OF ORDER .................................................. ....... .. ........................... 12 

Section 1. Order of Business-Board Meetings ........... .... .. .. ... .. ... .... .. ... ............... .... 12 

Section 2. Rules of Order Per Agenda Item .. ..... .... .. ... ......... ... .. .. .. .. .................... .. 12 

Section 3. Public Hearings .... ................................... .... ......................................... 13 

Section 4. Closed Sessions ....................................... ........ ....... .. .. ........................ 13 

1 
MOWD Board Member Reference Guide (Final) Page 31 of 139



Section 5. Additions to the Agenda .. .. .... ....... .. .... .................. ....... ......... .... ....... .. .. . 13 

Section 6. Adjournment. ................ ... , ..... ..... ... ................... ............ .... .................... 13 

Section 7. Temporary Chairperson ........ ................................. .. ... .. .. ............. ........ 13 

Article XII. BOARD COMMITTEE. .......... ... ... ..... ............................ ....... ... .............. ........ 14 

Article XIII. ADMINISTRATION OF DISTRICT BUSINESS ........... .... .. ....... .. ..... .......... .. 14 

Section 1. General Manager .. ...... ...... .... ...... ... ... ......... ..... ......... ... .. ... ... .... .... ..... .... 14 

Section 2. Legal Counsel .................. ....... ... .... ................... ................................... 15 

Section 3. . Independent Auditor ..... ....... ... .. ....... ..... ..... ........... .... ...... .. ........ .... ..... ... 15 

Section 4. Conflict of Interest Code .... ...... ............................ .. .. .. ..... ................. ..... 15 

Section 5. Fiscal Matters ................ ... ..... .................................. .. ... .. .. ......... .... ....... 15 

ARTICLE XIV. ADOPTION AND AMENDMENT OF this reference guide ... ........ .... ...... 17 

Attachment 1 District Boundary .............. .. ... ........ ................... ... ............ ..... .. ..... ..... ... 18 

Attachment 2 District Boundary ........ ..... ....... ....... ............. ...... .......... ........ ... ...... ... ... .. 19 

Attachment 3 Brown Act ... .... .. .......... ... ..... ..... .. .... .... ....... .... .... .. ..... ...... ... .. .. ...... .... ..... 20 

2 
MOWD Board Member Reference Guide (Final) Page 32 of 139



Board Members BYLAWS 

MEINERS OAKS WATER DISTRICT 

Article I. NAME 

The name of this organization is the Meiners Oaks Water District. (further 
referred to as District) The District was formed under Chapter 592 of the 
acts of the 40th session of the California Legislature in December, 1948 
under Government Code section 53011 and 53051. 

Article II. HISTORY 

Meiners Oaks Water District was formed in December, 1948 as a Special 
District under Health and Safety Code 4011. Added to that, Meiners 
Oaks Water District operates under a permit issued by the State Board of 
Public Health since June, 1954. 

Article Ill. MISSION AND OBJECTIVES 

The mission of Meiners Oaks Water District and its staff is to produce and 
deliver a reliable and sustainable supply of water to meet the needs of the 
residents and properties and the community within its boundaries. 

Article IV. TERRITORY 

Use LAFCO Definition (See attachment 1 and 2) 

Article V. PLACE OF BUSINESS 

The administrative office is located at 202 West El Roblar, Ojai CA 93023. 

Article VI. GOVERNING BOARD 

The Board is the governing body of the District. The Board receives its 
power from the California Constitution and State laws passed by the 
legislature, including the District's formation document dated March 1949. 
State law takes precedence if a conflict occurs between State Law, 
versus these bylaws or any action by the Board. 

Article VII. POWERS 

The powers of the District, pursuant to Health & Safety Code§ 4011 et 
seq., include but are not limited to: 

■ Use a seal 

MOWD Board Member Reference Guide (Final) 
3 

Page 33 of 139



• Sue and be sued 

• Acquire property, plan, construct, reconstruct, alter, enlarge, lay, 
renew, replace, maintain, and operate as the Board deems necessary 
and proper 

• Permit the use of District property by other governmental agencies 

• Permit the lease of the District property [Water code 32449 and 
32451] 

• Acquisition and disposal of surplus property [ CA. Gov. Code Section 
54220 - 54232] 

• Make & accept contracts & deeds 

• Expend any sum required in an emergency without complying with 
regular competitive bidding requirements 

• Pay lawful claims & demands 

• Employ & pay necessary employees 

• Lay its mains & laterals in any public street or road in the County or 
City 

• May sell, or otherwise dispose of byproducts resulting from District 
operations 

• Call & conduct all necessary or proper elections 

• Enter into contracts with county or city to pay and apportion costs of 
locating, repairing or relocating facilities on roads or other property of 
the other County or City 

• Prescribe, revise & collect, fees, tolls, rates, rentals, or other charges 
for services & facilities furnished 

• Exercise the power granted by [Water Code 32449/32451 & CA 
Government code 53011/53051] 

• Borrow money & incur indebtedness & guarantee the performance of 
its legal or contractual obligations 

• Enter upon private property for the purpose of inspection & 
maintenance of facilities 

MOWD Board Member Reference Guide (Final) 
4 

Page 34 of 139



Section 1. Ethics Guidelines 

1.1 Acts in the Public Interest 

Directors must recognize that stewardship of the public interest must be 
their primary concern; Directors will work for the common good of the 
people of the District and not for any private or personal interest, and they 
will assure fair and equal treatment of all persons, claims and 
transactions coming before the Board. 

1.2 Comply with the Law 

Directors shall comply with the laws of the Nation, the State of California 
and the District in the performance of their public duties. These laws 
include, but are not limited to: the United States and California 
constitutions; Fair Political Practices laws; laws pertaining to conflicts of 
interest, election campaigns, financial disclosures, employer 
responsibilities, open process of government; and policies in accordance 
with AB 1234. 

1.3 Conduct of Directors 

The professional and personal conduct of Directors must be above 
reproach and avoid even the appearance of impropriety. Directors shall 
refrain from abusive conduct, personal charges or verbal attacks upon the 
character or motives of other Directors, the staff or public. 

1.4 Respect for Process 

Directors shall perform their duties in accordance with processes and 
rules of order established in this guide. 

1.5 Conduct at Public Meetings 

Directors shall prepare themselves for public issues; listen courteously 
and attentively to all public discussion before the body; and focus on the 
business at hand. They shall refrain from interrupting other speakers; 
making personal comments not germane to the business of the body; or 
otherwise interfering with the orderly conduct of meetings. Brown Act 
(See Attachment 3) 

MOWD Board Member Reference Guide (Final) 
5 

Page 35 of 139



1.6 Communication 

Directors shall publicly share substantive information that is relevant to a 
matter under consideration by the Board, which they may have received 
from sources outside of the public decision-making process. 

1.7 Conflict of Interest 

In order to assure their independence and impartially on behalf of the 
common good, Directors shall not use their official positions to influence 
government decisions in which they have a material financial interest. 

1.8 Gifts and Favors 

Directors shall not take any special advantage of services or opportunities 
for personal gain, by virtue of their public offices that are not available to 
the public in general. They shall refrain from accepting any gifts, favors 
or promises of future benefits which might compromise their 
independence of judgment or action or give the appearance of being 
compromised. (AB 1234 Board member ethics) 

1.9 Confidential Information 

Directors shall respect the confidentiality of information concerning the 
property, personnel or affairs of the District. They shall not disclose 
confidential information unless required to fulfill their fiduciary duty. They 
shall not disclose confidential information to advance their personal, 
financial or other private interest. 

1.10 Representation of Private Interests 

In keeping with their roles as stewards of the public interest, Directors 
shall not appear on behalf of the private interests of third parties before 
the Board. 

1.11 Advocacy 

Directors shall represent the official policies of the District to the best of 
their ability when designated as delegates for this purpose. When 
presenting their individual opinions and positions, Directors shall explicitly 
state they do not represent their body, nor will they allow the inference 
that they do. 

6 
MOWD Board Member Reference Guide (Final) Page 36 of 139



1.12 Policy Role of Directors 

Directors shall not interfere with the administrative functions of the District 
or the professional duties of District staff; nor shall they impair the ability 
of staff to implement Board policy decisions. 

1.13 Positive Workplace Environment 

Directors shall support the maintenance of a positive and constructive 
workplace environment for District employees, customers, members of 
the public and businesses dealing with the District. District shall 
recognize their special role in dealings with District employees and in no 
way create the perception of inappropriate direction to staff. 

Section 2. Number of Directors 

Pursuant to Water Code Section 30500 the minimum number of members 
for the Board of Directors is five (5), each representing the District as a 
whole. 

Section 3. Vacancies and Appointments 

Refer to California Government Code Section 1780 et seq. regarding 
Board member vacancies and appointments. 

No member of the Board shall have more than three (3) unexcused 
absences in one calendar year. 

Section 4. Elections 

4.1 Election 

Each member of the Board is elected in a general election pursuant to 
Elections Code 10500et seq. 

4.2 Election Year 

Elections are held in even-numbered years in November and are 
consolidated with the County of Ventura's general election; the new 
terms, following election, begin at the first meeting in January. 

4.3 Residence Requirements 

Each member of the Board is required to maintain their primary domicile 
(inhabiting) within the district from which they are elected: CA Gov. Code 
Section 34882, CA Elections Code Section 10227 

7 
MOWD Board Member Reference Guide (Final) Page 37 of 139



4.4 Term of Office 

The term of office for each member of the Board is four years beginning 
on the first regular meeting in January, following the general election. 
This date will also be designated in the letter from the County Elections 
Officer to the newly elected Board Member. A member's term can be 
terminated by his/her resignation from office, Board action, or termination 
of residence within the District. 

4.5 Vacancies 

Vacancies on the Board shall be filled for the unexpired term pursuant to 
Government Code Section 1780 et seq. 

1. Seating of newly elected directors takes place at the first meeting after 
the County Board of supervisors certifies the election results as 
recommended by the County Elections Office. Previous office holder, 
unless removed from the board, shall serve until the meeting of the 
newly elected director takes office. 

2. Every newly elected director shall take an oath of office at the time of 
seating, as required by the County Clerk's office. 

3. A newly elected director must file a Conflict of Interest Statement, 
pursuant to the requirements of the Political Reform Act, (Government 
Code Sections 87300-87302) as amended by the Fair Political 
Practices Commission pursuant to (Ca. Gov. Code Section 18730). 

Section 5. Board Compensation 

5.1 Compensation 

Directors shall be compensated for each meeting of the Board of 
Directors, or sub-committee meeting. [Government Code Section 20201 
et seq.] Attended by him/her or for each day's service rendered as a 
member by request of the Board, together with any expenses incident 
thereto. Rate of compensation and eligible expense reimbursement shall 
be set by resolution of the Board. (Resolution# 031511-1) 

Article VII I. OFFICERS OF THE BOARD 

Section 1. Titles and Functions 

The officers of the Board of Directors shall consist of the following : 

8 
MOWD Board Member Reference Guide (Final) Page 38 of 139



1.1 President 

The President shall preside at all meetings of the Board of 
Directors, have general supervision of the affairs of the Board of 
Directors, represent such duties as the bylaws may prescribe. 

1.2 Vice-President 

The Vice-President shall assist the President in performance of 
his/her duties and act in his/her stead when required. 

1.3 Secretary (not an elected position) 

The Secretary countersigns all resolutions and ordinances with 
the President of the Board. The General Manager may act as 
Secretary to the Board. 

Section 2. Terms of Office 

2.1 Length of Term 

The terms of all officers shall be from the date of their election 
(historically this election has been held at the December Board 
Meeting) for the following approximately 12 month period when 
elections are held again. Any member can be reelected to 
continue in the same office. 

2.2 Vacancies 

If the President fails to complete his/her term, the Vice-President 
shall act in his/her stead and a new Vice-President shall be 
elected for the remainder of the term. 

If the Vice-President fails to complete his/her term, the Board of 
Directors will elect a Board member to serve out the remainder of 
the unexpired term. 

Section 3. Office Elections 

3.1 Nominations 

Nominations for each office will be open to all members of the 
Board. Nominations will be made by members of the Board, and 
taken at the Board meeting at which the election of officers will 
occur. No member shall be nominated without his or her consent 
to serve if elected. 

MOWD Board Member Reference Guide (Final) 
9 

Page 39 of 139



3.2 Election Process 

The election of officers shall take place as the first item of 
business at the regular meeting of Board of Directors in January of 
each year. Officers shall be elected in the following order: 
President and Vice-President 

3.3 Method of Election 

There shall be one vote per slate of candidates for each office. 
The candidate (or nominee) who gains the majority of votes from 
the board members present shall win that office. Votes may not 
be cast in absentia. In elections with multiple nominees, where no 
one receives a majority, a runoff vote shall take place between the 
two top vote receivers. 

(No abstentions are allowed in these elections) 

3.4 Assumption of duties 

Officers shall assume the duties of their offices immediately 
following completion of the election process for all offices. 

Article IX. MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Section 1. Time and Place 

The time and place of regular meetings of the Board shall be set 
by resolution. All meetings shall be conducted pursuant to 
Section 54950 et seq. of the California Government Code, 
commonly known as the Brown Act. (Attachment 3) 

Section 2. Agenda 

The Secretary of the Board is responsible for posting a copy of 
each Board meeting agenda at the District Administration Office, 
on the outside posting board, for regular meetings at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting time as required by Section 54954.2 of 
the California Government Code, and for other meetings as 
required by the Brown Act. The Secretary of the Board shall mail 
a copy of each agenda to those people, agencies, organizations 
who have requested to be placed on the current mailing list for 
such notices. The General Manager is responsible for preparing a 
written staff report on agenda items, as appropriate. The Board 

10 
MOWD Board Member Reference Guide (Final) Page 40 of 139



President may change the sequence of items on the agenda. Any 
Board Member may request an item be placed on the agenda for 
discussion or action. All such requests shall consider the amount 
of time needed for staff to research. Emergency items can only 
be added pursuant to the Brown Act. 

Members of the public may request to have an item placed on a 
future Board agenda during the Public Comment portion of a 
Board meeting. The President shall ask if any Board Member 
supports this request. If there is support the General Manager will 
be directed to place the item on a future Board agenda. 

Section 3. Quorum 

A majority of the current Board membership shall constitute a 
quorum. (Three (3) or more) A majority of the Board members 
voting shall be required to approve, disapprove or otherwise act 
on any proposal. A tie vote shall be tabled for a full board vote. 

Section 4. Special Meetings 

Special and Emergency Meetings of the Board shall be called in 
accordance with Section 54950 et seq. of the Brown Act. 

Article X. RECORDS OF PROCEEDINGS 

Section 1. Recordings 

Meetings may be recorded to assist in the preparation of written 
minutes of Board proceedings. These sound recordings may be 
destroyed once the written minutes are prepared and approved by 
the Board. 

Section 2. Written Minutes 

The Secretary of the Board shall prepare for approval by the 
Board of Directors minutes recording all resolutions, ordinances, 
actions, and determinations of the Board. 

MOWD Board Member Reference Guide (Final) 
11 

Page 41 of 139



Section 3. Official Signatures 

All papers involving official acts of the Board shall be signed in 
accordance with appropriate legislation relating to such acts. In 
the absence of specific regulations, the signature of the President 
or Vice-President attested by the Secretary to the Board shall be 
deemed sufficient. 

Section 4. Public Records Act Policy 

The District shall comply with the California Public records Act 
[Government Code Section 6250 et seq.], all qualified written 
requests for District records shall be promptly made. 

Article XI. RULES OF ORDER 

Section 1. Order of Business-Board Meetings 

The President, or acting President, may make changes in the 
order of the agenda unless a two-thirds vote of the members in 
attendance defeats the decision of the President. The preferred 
order of business shall be as follows: 

Section 2. Rules of Order Per Agenda Item 

To obtain the floor, a Director or staff member must be recognized 
by the President. A public attendee must fill out a speakers card 
and be recognized by the President. The Board may limit the 
amount of time speakers are permitted to address the Board. 

The Director originating a motion/or action, should state the action 
or actions desired. 

A motion may be amended, prior to the vote, if the first & second 
on that motion agree to that amendment. 

The Board must address the matter of whether to reconsider the 
action or not by a majority vote. If the decision to reconsider an 
action occurs at the same meeting as the action itself, and is 
affirmative, the matter will be placed on the Agenda for the next 
Board Meeting. 

If after the conclusion of a meeting, a Board Member requests the 
reconsideration be placed on the Agenda of the next meeting, the 

12 
MOWD Board Member Reference Guide (Final) Page 42 of 139



motion to reconsider and, if affirmative, the reconsideration shall 
occur at the meeting. 

Vote on all other motions can be conducted by voice vote, i.e. aye 
or nay. 

Section 3. Public Hearings 

Public Hearings will be conducted as follows: 

1. Open public hearing 
2. Receive staff report and recommendations 
3. Report of written communications by Clerk of the Board 
4. Public comment 
5. Close public-hearing 
6. Discussion by Board of Directors 

Further input by the public after the close of the public hearing 
shall be at the discretion of the President. 

Section 4. Closed Sessions 

Closed sessions may be called by the President at any time 
during a meeting in accordance with Section 54950, et seq. of the 
California Government Code. (Brown Act) 

Section 5. Additions to the Agenda 

Items may be added to the agenda at the beginning of a regular 
meeting only when the item to be added meets the requirements 
in Government Code Section 54950 et seq., commonly referenced 
as "the Brown Act." Additions cannot be made to the agenda of 
any special meeting. 

Section 6. Adjournment 

The Board may adjourn any regular, adjourned regular, special, or 
adjourned special meeting to a time and place specified in the 
order of adjournment, pursuant to Government Code Section 
54955. (Brown Act) 

Section 7. Temporary Chairperson 

In the absence of the President and the Vice-President 15 minutes 
after the noticed time of any meeting of the Board, the Secretary 

13 
MOWD Board Member Reference Guide (Final) Page 43 of 139



of the Board shall convene the meeting and the Board shall elect 
a temporary President to conduct such meeting. Upon arrival of 
the President or Vice-President, the higher ranking regular officer 
shall become the presiding officer and conduct such meeting. 

Article XII. BOARD COMMITTEE 

Annually, following the election of officers, the Board will renew 
the Standing Committees deemed appropriate for the Board's 
needs. The President of the Board of Directors shall appoint from 
within the Board's membership, with the advice of the Board, 
Directors to serve on each of the standing committees, and any 
additional temporary ad hoc committees as he/she deems 
appropriate. 

The President of the Board of Directors shall appoint individual 
Directors to serve as the Board's representative to boards, 
committees and agencies outside the District. The President may 
appoint himself/herself to serve in any of these positions. 

Committee meetings are public and subject to the requirements of 
"the Brown Act." 

Committees shall consist of no more than two (2) members. 

The committee meeting schedule shall be mutually determined by 
the committee membership. Committee meetings cannot be held 
without majority of the committee membership present. 

If a committee member is unable to attend a scheduled committee 
meeting, it is the member's responsibility to notify the General 
Manager at the earliest time possible. 

Article XIII. ADMINISTRATION OF DISTRICT BUSINESS 

Section 1. General Manager 

The Board of Directors shall appoint a General Manager to 
implement the policies and programs approved by the Board of 
Directors. The General Manager so selected shall meet such 
minimum qualifications as are established by the Board of 
Directors. He/she shall serve at the pleasure of the Board. 

MOWD Board Member Reference Guide (Final) 
14 

Page 44 of 139



The General Manager will be subject to review annually by the 
Board of Directors beginning in April. 

The General Manager shall be responsible for the publication and 
distribution of an agenda packet for Board of Directors and 
Committee meetings. 

Section 2. Legal Counsel 

The Board of Directors shall obtain legal counsel to insure that all 
business of the District is conducted in conformity with the laws of 
the State. Such legal counsel may be obtained by the 
employment of a competent attorney or by such other means 
deemed appropriate. 

Contact with District Legal Counsel by an individual Director is 
prohibited except with the consent of President or by direction or 
approval of the Board. The General Manager is authorized to 
contact District Legal Counsel as deemed necessary. 

Section 3. Independent Auditor 

Pursuant to Government Code 26909 the Board shall obtain the 
services of an independent certified public accountant to annually 
audit the financial books and records of the District. Such auditor 
shall annually present a written report of the District's financial 
position to the Board of Directors along with a management letter 
containing any observations comments deemed pertinent. 

Section 4. Conflict of Interest Code 

All Board Members and covered employees (Board Secretary and 
General Manager and legal counsel) are subject to the District's 
conflict of interest code and shall file periodic statements as 
required by law. 

Section 5. Fiscal Matters 

Consistent with the provisions of applicable laws of the State of 
California, and the operational needs of the District, the General 
Manager shall be authorized and responsible for the fiscal 
concerns of the District as follows: 

Fiscal Year begins July 1st and ends June 30th
• 

MOWD Board Member Reference Guide (Final) 
15 

Page 45 of 139



5.1 Budget 

Prepare, for adoption by the Board of Directors prior to July 1st of 
each year, a budget showing anticipated revenues and expenses 
for personnel, services, supplies, equipment and related expenses 
to perform the purposes and goals of the District. Adoption of said 
budget authorizes the General Manager to collect and expend 
funds for purposes identified in the adopted budget, as it may be 
amended by the Board of Directors from time to time. The 
General Manager shall control expenditures to be within the 
specific categories and purpose in the adopted or amended 
budget and within the available funds on hand and revenues 
received. 

5.2 Finance Management 

As authorized in the District's Signatory Policy, adopted by the 
Board, the General Manager will direct the collection and 
disbursement of all monies into and out of the District treasury. 
The General Manager is authorized to make investments and 
open and close bank accounts as necessary to conduct the 
business of the District and in accordance with the District's 
current Investment Policy adopted by the Board of Directors. 

5.3 Purchasing Authority 

The General Manager has the authority to procure labor, supplies 
services and equipment as necessary in accordance with policies 
established by the Board of Directors. (Policy # F002) 

The General Manager shall arrange for entrance and exit 
interviews with the independent auditor as directed by the Board. 

The General manager is responsible for annually submitting 
financial reports to the State Controller's office (State Controller's 
Report) in accordance with Government Code § 53891. 

The independent auditor is to be instructed to supply the Board of 
Directors with all correspondence, related to the audit, 
simultaneously submitting copies of such correspondence to the 
General Manager and Staff. 

5.5 Statement of Investment Policy 

The General Manager is responsible to present to the Board, for 
review and approval, an annual Statement of Investment Policy in 
accordance with Government Code § 53646. 

16 
MOWD Board Member Reference Guide (Final) Page 46 of 139



5.6 Reimbursement Disclosure 
The General Manager is responsible for a report being published, 
at least annually, to disclose any reimbursement paid by the 
District of at least one hundred dollars ($100) for each individual 
charge for services or product received, in accordance with 
Government Code § 53646. 

ARTICLE XIV. ADOPTION AND AMENDMENT OF this 
reference guide 

This reference guide shall be adopted by resolution and become effective 
on August 16, 2011. Proposed amendments shall be presented in writing 
at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors and may be adopted at the 
next regular meeting, provided at least 14 days have elapsed since the 
first meeting. Amendments shall be approved by resolution of the Board 
and attached to this document. Changes to the District's boundary map 
due to annexations or detachments, and changes to the sections of laws 
reference, and any changes to this reference guide by reason of a 
change in the District's principal act or other State law affecting the 
District, shall be automatically incorporated as part of this document 
without the need for specific amendment following such changes. 

17 
MOWD Board Member Reference Guide (Final) Page 47 of 139



Now, Therefore be it resolved that this Board Member Reference Guide be fully 
adopted as resolution 081611-1 by the Meiners Oaks Board of Directors on this 
16th Day of August, 2011. 

Board President, Moira Barron 

MOWD Board Member Reference Guide (Final) 
55 

Page 48 of 139



Attachment 1 District Boundary 

D 

c:::I lpllln or - BOtlllClaly-fflZ.81 -

LJ Olllhlcl Boundlly-131U IICl1III 

Meiners Oaks Water District -
Sphere of Influence N ~ 

As Reviewed by the VenbJra LAFCO - January 21 , 2009 W+E ~,. 
PRpar1!C1 ll)'Cl:urtytllle1bllil - lllll:mlallml ~ ~-GIS DMA:11 ' ' 

1.2Sf] 2,500 5,IIID - ~..:re;:'_!~NAD27 S --c::::==----- Feet 
.... 31.,,.......~ .......... ~ .,-~~~~---.-... 
...,_ .. ._.__.._._.., ............... ..,._C,.... Rll ..._.--..::1 ..... lMC...V..,. 
.-:--- ...... -- ~ - - ........... . ... -.-11!.....i..., .... .......... ~~ 

MOWD Board Member Reference Guide (Final) 
18 

Page 49 of 139



Attachment 2 District Boundary 

. I /,, _____ ,~,....7 
l \ 

~ \ 
~~ 1 

Legend 
□Msl850;a&Wil!HDlolrld 

1381.9 ilCl1!& 

CJ werien; oas waier lll&b'ld 
splllff Ci(lnlll£!rEe 
131!12..81 aaa; 

' ---------

Meiners Oaks Water District 
Sphere of Influence 

As Reviewed bV Ventura LAFCO -J= 21,_2009 ~lryCoulltyaf \tmbni--sy,.tm15. . t - ..,..,[X"151m 

-l>l,,ne ~•·- CelfllmjaZ'Dne - WO 27 
0 1,2511 2.5011 SOOD - - --•-•------====----•• Feet Pdlllml!d:: .1.1'111.1)'. 200!I 

___ ..,_ ... ..._ _ __,IIJ•Wllllllba.C..C .,..._ ....... __..._ 

=-.__t..===,=-,-...... .= .. -=-:.::...~='J"-l'T'=:=..;.~c.t.zr ~---......._._ 

19 
MOWD Board Member Reference Guide (Final) Page 50 of 139



Attachment 3 Brown Act 

20 
MOWD Board Member Reference Guide (Final) Page 51 of 139



M_YM 
--·--- - ~ --

LAW OFFICES OF M!ODLElON, YOUNG & MINHEY, llf' 

The Ralph !vi. Bro\,.,.n Act 

California Govem1ncnt Code Sections 
54950-54963 

August 28, 2009 

f'.'t•as;_• 1mfr Im.• in,liJrnwlimr wntai1u:-cl hcn','n ls t'nrreu/ t,•s 10 /h,.i d,1t~ obt,l-'e, R,~cause tire l<1w if 
,_o;-,mt,ml,'y d1m1~in?., w£ J11 1ml n·1:m11m.:nci tire#)'"" ad rm i}H':s irr/orrnatlun without i:,,:msultiug 
ff/gai' cmm:rel. Additirmally. llrd auac,~d Goi;,1rm1tent Code Scctwms ha,•t" [N;:11 scak:d aown to 
,w.:t die r,eed~ of clia1•1F;• :rel10oil!. Jain/ Power!. Authoi•ifies, hEJOith lm111•a11ce o.Pgf1Hi:mkms, i!f(.· 

should nlll 1·gfy llp(m thi!I ~r-Y ~r ,vmpli!li! f*J»'Odm•J.'t,;;r 1~/th1t Brown A.r:,/_ 

HELPING SHAPE THE FUTURE 
OF CALIFORNIA CHARTER SCHOOLS 

MIOD ETON. YOUNG g,, MU,INET, lLP 
, .. , 11111/llt~rt A IMUt- 5 m •~O s .. -11~ .. r~ro_ c ... ,s-tES 
• ottfl 60-.f~OO I 916 h6.fiOO .t,,f >.rnp,1,; ,COii 

MOWD Board Member Reference Guide (Final) 
21 

Page 52 of 139



 
 

202 W. El Roblar Drive, Ojai, California 93023 
Tel: (805) 646-2114 Web: www.meinersoakswater.com 

 

Board Policy F-002: Purchasing Goods & Services  
Purchasing Authority 

The purchasing authority of the District's General Manager is limited to no more than $10,000 without 
prior Board authorization. 

General Manager may designate, in writing, a specific level of purchasing authority to appropriate 
District employees. However, it may not exceed $5,000. 

Purchase Orders 

Purchase orders are required for all purchases greater than $1,000. 

Informal Bids 

A minimum of three written informal bids are required for all purchases or services in any amount 
greater than $5,000 and below $10,000. The data received is to be documented on a standard 
spreadsheet form which states what is being bid on and shall list the company name, address, contact 
person, phone number, date, and bid price, including any taxes, shipping, etc. along with any other 
notes or pertinent information. The written informal bids shall be attached to the spreadsheet and 
maintained with the purchase order for the specific good or service.  

Formal Bids 

Formal competitive bidding procedures shall be used to procure all goods and services estimated to be 
over $10,000. The District will prepare an invitation for bid or request for proposal, publicize the 
invitation for bid or request for proposal, bids or proposals will be submitted by prospective 
contractors/vendors, and the District will evaluate the bids or proposals and then award the contract. 

Emergencies 

In case of an emergency, General Manager has the authority to make the purchases necessary to 
alleviate the emergency. As soon as practical, the Board President shall be notified of such action, and 
a determination shall be made as to whether or not an emergency Board meeting shall be convened to 
deal with the emergency or if the emergency is sufficiently under control to be able to wait for the next 
regular meeting to authorize further expenditures. 

Approval  

_____________________             _______________________ 

Board Secretary     Board President 

Page 53 of 139

http://www.meinersoakswater.com/


 
 

202 W. El Roblar Drive, Ojai, California 93023 
Tel: (805) 646-2114 Web: www.meinersoakswater.com 

 

Reference: Board Bylaws 

Last Edit: May 15, 2007 

Page 54 of 139

http://www.meinersoakswater.com/


202 W. El Roblar Drive, Ojai, California 93023 
Tel: (805) 646-2114 Web: www.meinersoakswater.com 

2-6-2023

Ventura Watershed Flow Enhancement and Water Resiliency Regional Framework Phase 2

Dear Ventura County Resource Conservation District (VCRCD), 

Meiners Oaks Water District is grateful for your partnership and efforts to conserve water across 
our valley. We also acknowledge the time and effort put into our VRIF2 request. However, over the 
elapsed time the districts direction has changed. And the effort needed to fulfill VCRCD contractual 
agreements is a bit heavy for our small district. Respectfully, Meiners Oaks Water District is 
withdrawing our VRIF2 request. 

MOWD looks forward to partnering with VCRCD on future projects. 

Sincerely, 

Justin Martinez 
General Manager 
Meiners Oaks Water District 

Page 55 of 139

http://www.meinersoakswater.com/


Potential Grant Funding: DWSRF FUNDING 

Category A, B, and C projects: 

• Category A – immediate health risk such as waterborne disease outbreak
• Category B – untreated or at-risk sources such as untreated surface water or untreated

groundwater under direct influence of surface water
• Category C – compliance or shortage problems such as chemical contamination or source

capacity problem

Page 56 of 139



1 

 

 

NOTE:  THIS WILL BE DISCUSSED AT THE BOARD MEETING IN FEBRUARY 2023 

 

 
MEINERS OAKS WATER DISTRICT   

February 14, 2023 

 

Will-Serve Summary Report             

 

Property  1330 S La Luna Avenue   

 

Customer 

Request   

The customer requests MOWD to provide a Will-Serve Letter for a 

proposed new primary residence that would be built on one of 4 lots 

which already have two meters that serve two existing primary 

single family residences.   

 

Committee This project was discussed at the Feb 3 meeting of the MOWD 

Committee on Allocations, New Meters and Expansion of Service;  

and with the project proponent.   

 

Prepared by  Jim Kentosh, Director 

 

Description and History of the Existing Property   

These four properties, shown in the site plan below, have a complex history.  Current 

information on the parcels is summarized in the table below:   

 

 

Existing Status of the Four Parcels 

 

Parcel Address APN Area 

(acres) 

Meter Use Fixed 

Allocation 

(HCF/yr) 

Variable 

Allocation 

(HCF/yr) 

#1 1330 S La Luna 018-0-

102-36 

1.25  Empty   

#2 1330 S La Luna 018-0-

102-37 

1.25 Yes 1 SFR none none 

#3 1330 S La Luna 018-0-

102-38 

1.25  Empty   

#4 1304 S La Luna 018-0-

102-39 

1.16 Yes 1 SFR 120 521 

 

Page 57 of 139



Meiners Oaks Water District                                                                        DRAFT  

 

 2 

 

We are not sure of the complete history of these parcels or when the larger lot was split 

into four parcels.  What we know is that the original 1,811 SF primary dwelling, with 2 

bedrooms and two baths, was built in 1949 on what is now Parcel #4.  The street address 

appears to be 1304 S La Luna Avenue, though one reference cites it as 1303 S La Luna 

Ave.  The 4-lot property was originally served by a single MOWD meter on La Luna 

Avenue.   

 

Site Plan of 4 Parcels and Meters 

 

 
 

La Luna Avenue 

Page 58 of 139



Meiners Oaks Water District                                                                        DRAFT  

 

 3 

 

At some unknown time prior to 2017, the property was split into the four lots shown.  In 

2017, lots #1 through #3 were sold together to a single owner.  In 2019 a 2,349 SF single 

family residence with 4 bedrooms and 3 baths was built on Parcel #2.  The new residence 

was supplied water by a new MOWD meter on La Luna Avenue.   

 

On February 28, 2017, MOWD provided a Will-Serve letter prior to the construction of 

the second residence in 2019.  The letter assigned a baseline allocation of 1.44 acre-feet 

(627 HCF), though it is unclear how that was to be distributed among the four parcels.  

At that time MOWD had not yet adopted its Policy on New Meters and Expansion of 

Service (adopted in December of 2022), and our new allocation program was in a state of 

flux.  In addition, the County of Ventura does not normally inform us when lot splits 

occur – if one occurred in that time frame.   

 

As we were finalizing our current allocation program, there were a number of unusual 

cases where properties had multiple lots, multiple dwellings and multiple meters.  We 

accounted for those as best we could at the time.  Our waiver program is intended to 

resolve any inconsistencies that may be uncovered.  In the present case we had four lots 

with 2 dwellings and 2 owners served by two meters.   

 

Whatever may have happened, it appears that the MOWD staff who were working on 

finalizing the allocation program were unaware of the existence of the new (2019) 

residence on Parcel #2, or of the sale of Parcels #1 – #3 to a new owner.  As a result, all 

of the allocation for the four parcels – 120 fixed and 521 variable – was calculated and 

assigned to the meter that serves the original residence on Parcel #4, which has a different 

owner.  Ironically, there is no allocation assigned to the new residence on Parcel #2, and 

all water used there has been charged the full over-allocation penalty.  Our accounting 

software did not notify us of this.  It took a request for a Will-Serve letter to bring this 

unique situation to light.  Upon further investigation, the Board might determine that a 

partial refund to the customer might be warranted.   

 

It may be useful to better understand whether and how a new meter was installed to 

support a new residence without Board knowledge.  Perhaps we need to improve our 

internal processes and external communications with the County.  However, with a new 

landowner after 2021, some of that information may be lost.   

 

Proposed 2-Step Process   

So, based on our preliminary analysis, it is proposed that MOWD proceed with a 2-step 

process:   

 

1)  Board approval of some method for recalculating and/or reassigning water 

allocations for the 4 properties to account for the new residence on Parcel #2.  This 

would essentially be equivalent to a waiver process to adjust and correct the original 

allocations assigned to the properties. 

 

2)  Depending on the amount of allocation available for Parcels 1 – 3, make a 

determination whether sufficient allocation is available there to support a new 

Page 59 of 139



Meiners Oaks Water District                                                                        DRAFT  

 

 4 

primary dwelling on Parcel #3, and whether that conforms with MOWD policy for 

issuing a Will-Serve letter.   

 

 

One Possible Outcome 

One possible method for adjusting water allocations for this project is presented below.  

This is intended for discussion purposes only and is not meant to limit future board 

decisions on this matter.  The two steps would proceed as follows: 

 

Step 1 – reassign original allocations through a waiver process 

We are in the unusual situation of needing to reduce the allocation of one 

landowner (Parcel #4) and transferring part of it to a different property (Parcel #2) 

in which the first landowner has no financial interest.  It is important to be fair to 

the owner of Parcel #4, who may feel penalized without having done anything 

wrong.  The most equitable solution would be to assign Parcel #4 its full allocation 

as calculated from MOWD’s current Allocation Program, without any reductions to 

accommodate the new residence and associated irrigation on Parcel #2.  The 

residence on Parcel #4 would be granted fixed and variable allocations as follows:  

 

Proposed Allocation for Parcel #4 

Fixed: 120 HCF/yr for 1 primary residence   

Variable:  Irrigable area = 36,013 SF 

  Variable Allocation = 318 HCF/yr  (from allocation calculator) 

 

These are essentially the allocations we would have calculated for Parcel #4 if 

Parcels 1 – 3 did not exist.  In the absence of evidence that we had some other 

understanding with the landowner, these allocations are probably the most 

supportable.   

 

An approach for assigning an allocation for Parcel #2 with its new residence and 

expansive green lawn (as displayed in realtors’ photos) is far less obvious.  That 

residence was built at a time when MOWD had in effect a moratorium on new 

connections.  How did that happen?   

 

Nevertheless, we provided a will-serve letter and allocation.  The residence is built 

and people seem to be living in it.  We can’t reasonably shut their water off.  So, as 

a minimum, Parcels 1 – 3 should be assigned a fixed allocation of 120 HCF/yr for 

the residence on Parcel #2.  That amount is required for health and safety purposes. 

 

So what should we do about the variable allocation for Parcels 1 – 3?  Let’s 

compare the allocations that would be calculated for each parcel by itself and for 

the 3 parcels treated as one aggregated parcel, as summarized in the table below:   

  

Page 60 of 139



Meiners Oaks Water District                                                                        DRAFT  

 

 5 

 

Baseline Variable Allocation Combinations 

 

Parcel 

Combinations 

Parcel Area 

(Acres) 

Irrigable Area 

(SF) 

Variable Alloc 

(HCF/yr) 

#1 1.25 52,373 384 

#2 1.25 52,570 385 

#3 1.25 53,463 388 

Total for #1 – #3 3.75  1157 

    

Combined #1 – #3 3.75 158406 521 

 

Using an “Allocation Calculator” app based on MOWD’s Allocation Program 

(posted online), the baseline variable allocation is calculated for each parcel or 

parcel combination in the table.  The Irrigable Area for each parcel or combination 

is taken from aerial survey results received from Eagle Aerial around 2017.  Each of 

Parcels #1 through #3, by itself, has a baseline variable allocation of 384, 385, and 

388 HCF/yr, respectively.  Added together, the 3 parcels would have a total variable 

allocation of 1157 HCF/yr.  However, that amount of allocation would be excessive 

for a single residence. 

 

Our Allocation Program does not provide for any allocation for an empty lot 

without a meter.  Nevertheless, it does allow adjacent parcels to be combined for 

the purpose of calculating allocations.  If the irrigable areas for the 3 parcels are 

added, the corresponding variable allocation would be 521 HCF/yr.  That amount is 

limited by the 2 acre cap on irrigable area, which is specified in the Allocation 

Program and is more appropriate for a single family residence on a large lot.  

Therefore, it is proposed that the variable allocation for Parcels #1 – #3 be set at 

521 HCF/yr in Step 1.   

 

As one option for Step 1, these allocation adjustments are recommended to 

accommodate the construction in 2019 of a new residence on Parcel #2.  A new 

allocation would be provided to the meter that serves Parcels #1 – #3. 

 

 

Step 2:  Allocation Adjustment for New Dwelling on Parcel #3 

A basic principle of our Policy on New Meters and Expansion of Service is that 

customers can, within limits, decide how they want to use the allocations they have 

been assigned, whether for indoor use, landscaping, pools, horses or Auxiliary 

Dwelling Units.  If a customer wishes to reduce irrigation to support a “granny 

flat,” that would be allowed, provided their existing allocation is adequate.  

 

 

In this case, the owner of Parcels #1-#3 wishes to build a new primary residence on 

Parcel #3.  They have sufficient allocation to do so.  Furthermore, the owner has 

requested that their variable allocation be distributed equally between the three 

Page 61 of 139



Meiners Oaks Water District                                                                        DRAFT  

 

 6 

parcels, to give them the maximum flexibility for another future dwelling.  In that 

case, their allocations would be reassigned as follows:   

 

a)  A new meter will be provided to supply the proposed residence on  

Parcel #3.   

b)  A 120 fixed allocation would be assigned to the new meter for the 

proposed new primary residence on Parcel #3. 

c)  140 would be subtracted from the 521 variable allocation from Step 1, 

leaving 381 variable allocation for Parcels 1 – 3.   

d)  The 381 variable allocation would, in turn, be divided and assigned to the 

2 meters as follows:  254 for the existing meter, and 127 for the new meter for 

the proposed new dwelling;   

 

where all allocations have units of HCF/yr.  Note that all allocations are assigned to 

a specific meter and account number.   

 

The final allocation re-assignments are summarized in the table below: 

 

Existing and Proposed Allocations 

 

  Existing 

Allocation 

Step 1 

Adjustment 

for 2019 SFR 

Step 2   

Adjustment 

for New SFR 

Parcel Description Fixed Var Fixed Var Fixed Var 

#4 Original SFR 120 521 120 318 120 318 

#1&2 Home built in 

2019 

None None 120 521 120 254 

#3 Proposed SFR     120 127 

SFR = Single family residence 

 

 

Recommendation   

By readjusting the existing allocation from the original property to the three parcels, all 

three residences should have sufficient allocations for health-and-safety purposes and for 

landscaping. 

 

Therefore, it is recommended that the Board authorize a Will-Serve letter be sent to the 

landowner for the proposed new primary residence on Parcel #3, subject to the allocation 

reassignments described.   

 

Since nothing prevents a future owner from selling the parcels to different owners, a new 

meter is recommended for Parcel #3.    

 

Page 62 of 139



Page 63 of 139



Page 64 of 139



Review of Application for Will Serve Letter  

New 5,000 sf metal structure w/2 bathrooms for Property with Existing Meter at 190 E. El Roblar. 

Proposal 

The proposed project consists of adding a new 5,000 sf metal structure w/2 bathrooms at the north end of the 

property, no living quarters. 

Applicant provided a detailed site plan, showing the location of the proposed structure. 

Screening Step 1:  Is the proposed building site on a legal lot? YES 

Applicant provided a copy of a tax assessor parcel map and a subdivision map that indicate a single 2.78-acre 

parcel.  APN: 017-0-090-32 

Screening Step 2. Will the current allocation support an ADU? YES 

Allocation Details: 

• Allocation Case Identifier: D-0025
• Allocation Category: 2" COM meter, 1 Parcel
• Parcel Size: 2.78 acre
• Current Base Fixed Allocation: 120 HCF/yr
• Current Base Variable Allocation: 1,272 HCF/yr
• Fixed Base Allocation Needed to Support ADU: 0 HCF/yr
• Deduction from Variable Allocation needed to Support ADU through drought stages: 0 HCF/yr

If the ADU are provided the customary fixed dwelling allocations, the new allocation for this property would be 
as follows: 

• No Change to Base Fixed Allocation:  120 HCF/yr
• No Change to Base Variable Allocation: 1,272 HCF/yr

Recommendation 

If a will serve letter is to be supplied, but must clearly state: 

• Letter applies only to the proposed ADU as described in the applicant-provided preliminary site plan
with the file date 11-14-2022

• There will be no increase in the total (fixed plus variable) water allocation assigned to the meter Will
Serve Letter will expire after 1 year.

Page 65 of 139



Page 66 of 139

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
9/09/2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG. NAME:

AutoCAD SHX Text
OAG16449

AutoCAD SHX Text
J.N.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUNTY OF VENTURA 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHURCH OF THE LIVING CHRIST

AutoCAD SHX Text
190 EAST EL ROBLAR AVENUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
City of Ojai

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CUP 2550 MINOR MODIFICATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
INFORMATION SHOWN HEREON, SUCH AS ASSESSOR'S PARCEL LINES & NUMBERS ARE PROVIDED BY THE COUNTY OF VENTURA GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEMS AND IS NOT BASED ON A FIELD SURVEY. ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS OF RECORD NOT SHOWN ON THIS MAP MAY EXIST AS A TITLE REPORT WAS NOT PROVIDED FOR THIS PROJECT. THIS DATA IS FOR CONCEPTUAL AND VISUAL PURPOSES ONLY AND IS NOT TO BE USED FOR MAPPING AND/OR FINAL DESIGN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1672  DONLON  STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
VENTURA,  CALIF.  93003

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAX

AutoCAD SHX Text
805/654-6977

AutoCAD SHX Text
805/654-6979

AutoCAD SHX Text
www.jdscivil.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
VICINITY MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAND USE DATA

AutoCAD SHX Text
APN:      017-0-090-32  017-0-090-32  ADDRESS:     190 E. EL ROBLAR DRIVE, OJAI CA 190 E. EL ROBLAR DRIVE, OJAI CA GENERAL PLAN  DESIGNATION:    "UR" PER OJAI VALLEY AREA PLAN "UR" PER OJAI VALLEY AREA PLAN ZONING:     RD-9 DU/AC, G.P. NON-COASTAL RD-9 DU/AC, G.P. NON-COASTAL PARCEL AREA:    2.73 AC (118,918.8 S.F.) 2.73 AC (118,918.8 S.F.) EXISTING STRUCTURE DATA: 1. CHURCH BUILDING   11,225 S.F. CHURCH BUILDING   11,225 S.F. 11,225 S.F. 2. SHADE STRUCTURES    360 S.F. SHADE STRUCTURES    360 S.F.   360 S.F. 3. STORAGE SHEDS             573 S.F. STORAGE SHEDS             573 S.F. (TO BE REMOVED) PROPOSED STRUCTURE DATA: 1. STORAGE/CLASSROOM   5,500 S.F.  STORAGE/CLASSROOM   5,500 S.F.   5,500 S.F.  BUILDING PROPOSED LOT COVERAGE:  17,085 S.F (14.4%)  17,085 S.F (14.4%)  

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1"=30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
 PROPERTY BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.M.U. RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
VEGETATIVE SCREENING

AutoCAD SHX Text
VEGETATIVE SCREENING

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPING

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAND/ PLAYGROUND AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXST. PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXST. PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXST. PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXST. PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXST. PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXST. PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXST. PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXST. CHURCH BLDG

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPING

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CHAINLINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CHAINLINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXST. RESIDENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXST. STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXST. STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXST. 8' X 11' TOOL SHED (TO BE REMVOED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXST. 10' X 10' LAWN MOWER SHED (TO BE REMOVED) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXST. 8' X 14' PLAYGROUND SHED (TO BE REMOVED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXST. 10' x 12' GARDEN SHED (TO BE REMOVED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXST. 38' TRUCK TRAILER (TO BE REMOVED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXST. 28' TRUCK TRAILER (TO BE  REMOVED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXST. 9' X 20' CLOTH SHADE COVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXST. 9'X9' RADIO EQUIP. SHED (TO BE REMOVED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXST. PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXST. 8' X 9' CHAIR SHED (TO BE REMOVED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXST. RESIDENCE APN 901-013-81

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXST. RESIDENCE APN 901-013-81

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXST. RESIDENCE APN 901-013-079 

AutoCAD SHX Text
APN 017-090-07

AutoCAD SHX Text
APN 017-090-28

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLEYWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPING

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. WALKWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXST. RESIDENCE APN 901-013-078 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXST. RESIDENCE APN 901-013-077 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXST. SAFETY LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"-18" C.M.U. RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
APN 017-090-45

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAIRS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL ROBLAR DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED STORAGE/  CLASSROOM BLDG

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROLL-UP DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROLL-UP  DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
AWNING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASH LANE



REDEMPTION
0170-090-325

Page 67 of 139

RTriggs
Line

RTriggs
Highlight



Page 68 of 139



Page 69 of 139



Review of Application for Will Serve Letter  

This property (water account) has two APNs, each parcel has an existing dwelling, served by one 
meter 240-244 N. Arnaz. The owner intends to sell each parcel and needs a meter to serve the second 
parcel (017-0-061-46 & 017-0-061-47).  

Proposal 

The proposed project consists of adding a new meter to serve existing dwelling on parcel 017-0-061-46 and splitting the 
remaining variable allocation.  

Screening Step 1:  Is the proposed building site on a legal lot? YES 

Applicant provided a copy of a tax assessor parcel map and a subdivision map that indicates two 0.137-acre parcels.  
APN: 017-0-061-46 (244 N. Arnaz) and 017-0-061-47 (240 N. Arnaz). 

Screening Step 2. Will the current allocation support two primary dwellings and allocation split? YES 

Allocation Details: 

• Allocation Case Identifier: B-0006 
• Allocation Category: 5/8" RES meter, 2 Parcels 
• Parcel Size: 0.137 acres x2 parcels  
• Current Base Fixed Allocation: 168 HCF/yr (each dwelling has 7 HCF/mo) 
• Current Base Variable Allocation: 156 HCF/yr  
• Fixed Base Allocation Needed to Support ADU: 72 HCF/yr (Increase each dwelling by 3 HCF/mo) 
• Deduction from Variable Allocation needed to Support ADU through drought stages: 100 HCF/yr 

If the ADU are provided the customary fixed dwelling allocations, the new allocation for this property would be as 
follows: 

• New Base Allocation (Total): 240 HCF/yr 
• New Base Variable (Total): 56 HCF/yr 
• Recommended allocation split: 

240 N Arnaz: (1) Dwelling & Garage 244 N. Arnaz: (1) Dwelling 

Fixed = 120 HCF/yr Fixed = 120 HCF/yr 

Variable = 25 HCF/yr Variable = 31 HCF/yr 

Recommendation 

If a will serve letter is to be supplied, but must clearly state: 

• Letter applies only to the proposed new meter request and allocation split as described in the applicant-
provided preliminary site plan with the file date 1-20-2023. 

• There will be no increase in the total (fixed plus variable) water allocation assigned to the meter Will Serve 
Letter will expire after 1 year. 

• Customer will pay capital Improvement fee to buy into MOWD system. 

Page 70 of 139



Page 71 of 139



Page 72 of 139



Page 73 of 139



Page 74 of 139



Page 75 of 139



Page 76 of 139



Page 77 of 139



Page 78 of 139



Page 79 of 139



Review of Application for Will Serve Letter 

Add a new RES meter for existing dwelling at 246 S. Padre Juan, currently served with Existing 
Meter at 234 S. Padre Juan. This property (water account) has two APNs, each parcel has an 
existing dwelling, served by one meter. The owner intends to sell each parcel and needs a meter 
to serve the second parcel (017-0-195-02).  

Proposal 

The proposed project consists of adding a new meter to serve existing dwelling on parcel 017-0-195-02. 
Applicant provided a detailed site plan, and proposed removal of pool and decking. 

Screening Step 1:  Is the proposed building site on a legal lot? YES 

Applicant provided a copy of a tax assessor parcel map and a subdivision map that indicates two 0.16-acre 
parcels.  APN: 017-0-195-02 (246 S. Padre Juan) and 017-0-195-03 (234 S. Padre Juan). 

Screening Step 2. Will the current allocation support two primary dwellings? YES 

Allocation Details: 

• Allocation Case Identifier: B-0308
• Allocation Category: 5/8" RES meter, 2 Parcels
• Parcel Size: 0.16 acres x2 parcels
• Current Base Fixed Allocation: 168 HCF/yr (each dwelling has 7 HCF/mo)
• Current Base Variable Allocation: 111 HCF/yr
• Fixed Base Allocation Needed to Support ADU: 72 HCF/yr (Increase each dwelling by 3 HCF/mo)
• Deduction from Variable Allocation needed to Support ADU through drought stages: 100 HCF/yr

If the ADU are provided the customary fixed dwelling allocations, the new allocation for this property without 
pool & decking removal would be as follows: 

246 S. Padre Juan 234 S. Padre Juan 

Fixed = 120 HCF/yr Fixed = 120 HCF/yr 

Variable = 5 HCF/yr Variable = 5 HCF/yr 

The property owner may submit an allocation waiver request after the pool and decking have been removed, 
for re-calculation of the variable allocation.

Page 80 of 139



Recommendation 

If a will serve letter is to be supplied, but must clearly state: 

• Letter applies only to the proposed new meter request and allocation split as described in the applicant-
provided preliminary site plan with the file date 1-20-2023

• Owner may submit an allocation waiver request after pool and decking is removed for re-calculation of 
the variable allocation.

• There will be no increase in the total (fixed plus variable) water allocation assigned to the meter Will 
Serve Letter will expire after 1 year.

• Customer will pay capital Improvement fee to buy into the MOWD system.

Page 81 of 139



Page 82 of 139



Page 83 of 139



Page 84 of 139



Page 85 of 139



Page 86 of 139



Page 87 of 139



Page 88 of 139



Review of Application for Will Serve Letter  

New 600 sf ADU (manufactured home) for Property with Existing Meter at 569 Tico Rd. 

Proposal 

The proposed project consists of adding a new ADU. Applicant provided a detailed site plan, showing the 
location of the proposed structure. 

Screening Step 1:  Is the proposed building site on a legal lot? YES 

Applicant provided a copy of a tax assessor parcel map and a subdivision map that indicate a single 0.34-acre 
parcel.  APN: 017-0-250-20 

Screening Step 2. Will the current allocation support an ADU? YES 

Allocation Details: 

• Allocation Case Identifier: AA-0916 
• Allocation Category: 5/8" RES meter, 1 Parcel 
• Parcel Size: 0.34 acre  
• Current Base Fixed Allocation: 120 HCF/yr 
• Current Base Variable Allocation: 170 HCF/yr  
• Fixed Base Allocation Needed to Support ADU: 84 HCF/yr 
• Deduction from Variable Allocation needed to Support ADU through drought stages: 120 HCF/yr 

If the ADU are provided the customary fixed dwelling allocations, the new allocation for this property would be 
as follows: 

• New Base Fixed Allocation:  204 HCF/yr 
• New Base Variable Allocation: 50 HCF/yr  

Recommendation 

If a will serve letter is to be supplied, but must clearly state: 

• Letter applies only to the proposed ADU as described in the applicant-provided preliminary site plan 
with the file date 1-5-2023 

• There will be no increase in the total (fixed plus variable) water allocation assigned to the meter Will 
Serve Letter will expire after 1 year. 

Page 89 of 139



SHEET  INDEX
PROPOSED PREFABRICATED ADU

DEVIN WITT

569 TICO ROAD, OJAI, CA 93023  -  017-0-250-200

OWNER: DEVIN WITT
APN: 017-0-250-200
TRACT:
BLOCK:
LOT:
ZONING: R-1
CONSTRUCTION TYPE: V-B
OCCUPANCY: R-3

PROPOSED ADU BUILDING HEIGHT: 11'-3 14"
VERY HIGH FIRE HAZARD SEVERITY ZONE: NO
LOT AREA: 14,810  SF, .34 ACRES

TABULATION

PROFESSIONALS

REQUIRED DEPUTY AND CONSULTANT INSPECTIONS
THE CONTRACTOR SHALL INFORM THE DESIGNER 48 HOURS IN ADVANCE OF
REACHING THE FOLLOWING STAGES OF CONSTRUCTION:
1) FOOTING EXCAVATIONS COMPLETED, FORMS READY FOR PLACING OF
REINFORCING.
2) FOOTING REINFORCING BARS IN PLACE.
3) CONCRETE PLACING OPERATIONS.
4) WOOD FRAMING COMPLETED BUT NOT CLOSED IN.
5) PLY. NAILING COMPLETED BUT NOT COVERED.

TEST AND INSPECTIONS: THE FOLLOWING ITEMS REQUIRE SPECIAL DEPUTY
INSPECTION PER 2017 LARC, SEE PLANS AND DETAILS FOR SPECIFIC LOCATIONS.

MISCELLANEOUS TEST
1) DRILLED CONCRETE OR CMU ANCHORS
2) EPOXY EMBEDED MEMBERS

INSPECTION  NOTES

VICINITY  MAP

COVER SHEET

ARCHITECTURAL

SITE PLANA02

A03
PROPOSED ADU PLAN
& ROOF PLAN

DRAFTSMAN / DESIGNER:
CAMERON A. CLARK
377 PRINCETON AVENUE,
VENTURA, CA  93003
T: 818.606.4048

PERMIT CONSULTANT:
STEVE ALARY
T: 805-407-6729
E: STEVE.ALARY@GMAIL.COM

A01

A05 INTERIOR ELEVATIONS

SYMBOLS

KEYNOTE NUMBER

INT. ELEV.  NUMBER
SHEET NUMBER REVISION NUMBER

-

-
--- -

WINDOW LETTER-

DOOR NUMBER

-
---

SECTION LETTER
SECTION NUMBER

-
---

DETAIL NUMBER
SHEET NUMBER

NORTH ARROW CEILING HEIGHT-

-

GENERAL NOTES

1. ALL WORK SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CALIFORNIA CODE OF
REGULATIONS (TITLE 24) AND ALL OTHER LOCAL CODES AND ORDINANCES OF
THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY HAVING JURISDICTION, AND AS IDENTIFIED
UNDER APPLICABLE CODES ON THIS SHEET. IT IS THE INTENT OF THESE
DOCUMENTS TO COMPLY THERETO.

2. ALL DRAWINGS ARE TO BE USED IN CONCERT WITH EACH OTHER. IF THE
CONTRACTOR DISCOVERS ANY DISCREPANCY BETWEEN THE DOCUMENTS, HE
SHALL PROMPTLY REQUEST FROM THE ARCHITECT CLARIFICATION OF
GOVERNING CRITERIA. REFER TO THE ARCHITECTURAL DRAWINGS FOR EXACT
PLACEMENT, ORIENTATION AND COORDINATION OF WORK. INFORMATION
SHOWN IN THE LARGEST GRAPHIC ARE INTENDED TO SUPPLEMENT
INFORMATION OF SMALLER, PRECEDING REFERENCE DRAWINGS.

3. NOTATIONS MARKED "TYPICAL" (TYP.) SHALL BE CONSISTENT THROUGHOUT
ALL SUCH REFERENCE NOMENCLATURE, SYMBOLS AND DRAWING INDICATIONS
OF LIKE OR SIMILAR KIND.

4. DO NOT SCALE THE DRAWINGS. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL FIELD VERIFY
CONSTRUCTION CONDITIONS AND DIMENSIONS PRIOR TO ORDERING,
FABRICATING, AND INSTALLATION OF ANY ASSOCIATED WORK. IF
DISCREPANCIES ARE FOUND, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROMPTLY REQUEST
FROM THE ARCHITECT CLARIFICATION PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF
ASSOCIATED WORK.

5. DIMENSIONS ARE RELATED SPECIFICALLY TO FACE OF CONCRETE, FACE OF
MASONRY, FACE OF EXTERIOR STUDS, CENTERLINE OF STRUCTURAL
COLUMNS AND BEAMS, OR CENTERLINE OF INTERIOR STUDS, UNLESS
OTHERWISE NOTED. CLEAR DIMENSIONS ARE INDICATED FROM FINISHED
SURFACES OF MATERIALS OR ASSEMBLIES.

6. BUILDING ELEVATION REFERENCES ARE FROM DIRECT APPLICATION OF FINISH
FLOORING APPLIED TO THE STRUCTURAL FLOOR SUBSTRATE OF THE GROUND
FLOOR DATUM (MAIN ENTRANCE). CONTRACTOR SHALL INCLUDE REQUIRED
DEPRESSIONS AND/OR PROJECTIONS IN ACHIEVING REQUIRED ELEVATIONS.
CEILING HEIGHTS ARE REFERENCED TO FINISHED SURFACES UNLESS
OTHERWISE NOTED.

7. KEYNOTES USED ON THE DRAWINGS ARE FOR ASSEMBLIES, MATERIAL,
REFERENCES AND NOTES. REFER TO THE KEYNOTE LEGEND ON THE
RESPECTIVE DRAWING FOR THE INFORMATION WHICH RELATES TO EACH
KEYNOTE. NOT ALL KEYNOTES REFERENCED MAY BE APPLICABLE TO SIMILAR
TYPE DRAWINGS.

8. EXISTING WORK IS SHOWN FOR REFERENCE ONLY. THE OWNER AND
ARCHITECT DO NOT GUARANTEE EXISTING CONDITIONS INDICATED ON THESE
DOCUMENTS.

9. MATERIALS SUSPECTED OF CONTAINING ASBESTOS THAT ARE DISCOVERED
DURING THE PROGRESS OF THE WORK SHALL BE REPORTED TO THE OWNER.
WORK IN THAT PARTICULAR AREA SHALL BE SUSPENDED UNTIL THE OWNER
TESTS THE SUSPECT MATERIAL AND IT IS FOUND TO BE SAFE, OR UNTIL THE
SUSPECT MATERIAL HAS BEEN PROPERLY ABATED.

10. CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY, AT SITE, ALL EXISTING CONDITIONS PRIOR TO
SUBMITTAL OF BIDS, SITE VISITS DURING BIDDING SHALL BE COORDINATED
WITH THE OWNER IN ACCORDANCE WITH PROVISIONS OF THE
SPECIFICATIONS.

11. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROTECT ALL EXISTING WORK. ANY DAMAGED WORK
SHALL BE REPLACED WITH THE SAME MATERIALS, INCLUDING MATCHING THE
EXISTING COLORS AND TEXTURES.

12. CONTRACTOR(S) SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THEIR OWN CLEANUP AS WORK
PROGRESSES.

13. ALL WORK IS NEW UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.
14. EXISTING CONSTRUCTION SHOWN ON THE DRAWINGS WAS OBTAINED FROM

THE ORIGINAL CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS. SHOULD THESE DOCUMENTS
EXIST, THEY WILL BE MADE AVAILABLE. THE ORIGINAL CONSTRUCTION
DRAWINGS ARE NOT A PART OF THE CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS AND DO
NOT WARRANT EXISTING CONDITIONS. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL
EXISTING CONDITIONS AND NOTIFY THE ARCHITECT OF ALL EXCEPTIONS
BEFORE PROCEEDING WITH THE WORK.

15. CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE ADMINISTERED PER CALIFORNIA CODE OF
REGULATIONS TITLE 24, PART 1, CHAPTER 4, GROUP 1.

15.1. A COPY OF PARTS 1 AND 2, TITLE 24, C.C.R. SHALL BE KEPT ON THE JOB
SITE AT ALL TIMES.

15.2. ALL CHANGE ORDERS AND ADDENDA TO BE SIGNED BY THE ARCHITECT
AND THE OWNER APPROVED. CHANGE ORDERS ARE NOT VALID UNTIL
APPROVED.

15.3. ALL TESTS TO CONFORM TO THE REQUIREMENT OF SECTION 4-335, PART
1, TITLE 24, AND APPROVED T. & I. SHEET.

15.4. TESTS OF MATERIALS AND TESTING LABORATORY SHALL BE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 40335 OF PART 1, TITLE 24, AND THE
OWNER SHALL EMPLOY AND PAY THE LABORATORY. COSTS OF RE-TEST
MAY BE BACK CHARGED TO THE CONTRACTOR.

15.5. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PERFORM HIS DUTIES IN ACCORDANCE WITH
SECTION 4-343, PART 1, TITLE 24.

16. GRADING PLANS, DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS, ROAD AND ACCESS
REQUIREMENTS, AND ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH CONSIDERATIONS SHALL
COMPLY WITH LOCAL ORDINANCES.

GENERAL NOTES
APPLICABLE CODES:

1. 2019 CALIFORNIA BUILDING CODE (2018 IBC)
2. 2019 CALIFORNIA RESIDENTIAL CODE (2018 IRC)
3. 2019 CALIFORNIA ELECTRICAL CODE (2017 NEC)
4. 2019 CALIFORNIA MECHANICAL CODE (2018 IMC)
5. 2019 CALIFORNIA PLUMBING CODE (2018 IPC)
6. 2019 CALIFORNIA FIRE CODE
7. 2019 CALIFORNIA GREEN BUILDING STANDARDS CODE (CALGREEN)
8. 2019 CALIFORNIA ENERGY CODE
9. 2018 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY MAINTENANCE CODE

COUNTY VIEW MAP

HEIGHT AND SETBACK TABLE

PROPOSED HEIGHT OF PREFABRICATED ADU: 1-STORY / 11'-3 14"
HEIGHT LIMIT: 16'-0"

FRONT

SETBACKS REQUIRED EXISTING PROPOSED

SIDE

20'-0"

4'-0"

NA

NA

NA

PROPOSED PREFABRICATED ADU THAT IS 598 SF, WITH A BUILDING HEIGHT OF 11'-3 14". MODEL # GS-20302A AND
CONSTRUCTED BY CAVCOWEST.

SCOPE  OF  WORK

THE PROPOSED ADU INCLUDES A LIVING ROOM, KITCHEN (INCLUDING STOVE AND REF.), MASTER BEDROOM W/ CLOSET,
SECONDARY BEDROOM W/ CLOSET, FULL BATHROOM AND WASHER AND DRYER AREA.

THE PROPOSED ADU CONFORMS TO ANY AND ALL REQUIRED SETBACKS, BUILDING HEIGHTS, AND SQUARE FOOTAGES.

FLOOR AREA

GROSS
598 SF

NETAREA
PROPOSED ADU

ADU & EXISTING SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENCE, GARAGE, & SHED

WILDLAND URBAN INTERFACE NOTES

1. THIS PROJECT IS LOCATED WITHIN THE DESIGNATED WILDLAND URBAN INTERFACE FIRE AREA. PRIOR TO BUILDING PERMIT
FINAL APPROVAL, THE PROPERTY SHALL BE IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE VEGETATION MANAGEMENT REQUIREMENTS
PRESCRIBED IN CALIFORNIA FIRE CODE SECTION 4906, INCLUDING CALIFORNIA PUBLIC RESOURCES CODE 4291 OR
CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 51182 PER CRC R337.3.1.

2. WHERE THE ROOF PROFILE ALLOWS A SPACE BETWEEN THE ROOF COVERING AND ROOF DECKING, THE SPACE SHALL BE
CONSTRUCTED TO PREVENT THE INTRUSION OF FLAMES AND EMBERS, BE FIRE STOPPED WITH APPROVED MATERIALS OR
HAVE ONE LAYER OF 72 POUNDS MINERAL-SURFACED, NON-PERFORATED CAP SHEET INSTALLED OVER THE COMBUSTIBLE
DECKING PER CRC R337.5.2.

3. EXTERIOR WALL COVERINGS SHALL EXTEND FROM THE TOP OF THE FOUNDATION TO THE ROOF, AND TERMINATE AT 2 INCH
NOMINAL SOLID WOOD BLOCKING BETWEEN RAFTERS AT ALL ROOF OVERHANGS, OR IN THE CASE OF ENCLOSED EAVES,
TERMINATE AT THE ENCLOSURE PER CRC R337.7.3.2.

4. EXTERIOR WINDOWS AND EXTERIOR GLAZED DOOR ASSEMBLIES SHALL COMPLY WITH ONE OF THE FOLLOWING
REQUIREMENTS PER CRC R337.8.2.1.

4.1. BE CONSTRUCTED OF MULTI-PANE GLAZING WITH A MIN. OF ONE TEMPERED PANE MEETING THE REQUIREMENTS OF
SECTION 2406 SAFETY GLAZING, OR.

4.2. BE CONSTRUCTED OF GLASS BLOCK UNITS, OR
4.3. HAVE A FIRE-RESISTANCE RATING OF NOT LESS THAN 20 MINUTES WHEN TESTED ACCORDING TO NFPA 257, OR
4.4. BE TESTED TO MEET THE PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS OF SFM STANDARD 12-7A-2.

5. EXTERIOR DOORS SHALL COMPLY WITH ONE OF THE FOLLOWING PER CRC R337.8.3.
5.1. THE EXTERIOR SURFACE OR CLADDING SHALL BE OF NONCOMBUSTIBLE OR IGNITION-RESISTANT MATERIAL, OR
5.2. SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED OF SOLID CORE WOOD THAT COMPLY WITH THE FOLLOWING REQUIREMENTS:

5.2.1. STILES AND RAILS SHALL NOT BE LESS THAN 1-3/8" THICK
5.2.2. RAISED PANELS SHALL NOT BE LESS THAN 1-1/4" THICK, EXCEPT FOR THE EXTERIOR PERIMETER OF THE RAISED

PANEL THAT MAY TAPER TO A TONGUE NOT LESS THEN 38" THICK
5.3. SHALL HAVE A FIRE-RESISTANCE RATING OF NOT LESS THAN 20 MINUTES WHEN TESTED ACCORDING TO NFPA 252,

OR
5.4. SHALL BE TESTED TO MEET THE PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS OF SFM STANDARD 12-8A-1

6. WHERE VALLEY FLASHING IS INSTALLED, THE FLASHING SHALL NOT BE LESS THAN NO. 20 GAGE GALVANIZED SHEET
CORROSION-RESISTANT METAL INSTALLED OVER NOT LESS THAN ONE LAYER OF MINIMUM 72-POUND MINERAL SURFACED,
NON-PERFORATED CAP SHEET, AT LEAST 36 INCH WIDE RUNNING THE FULL LENGTH OF THE VALLEY PER CRC R337.5.3

7. ROOF GUTTERS SHALL BE PROVIDED WITH THE MEANS TO PREVENT THE ACCUMULATION OF LEAVES AND DEBRIS THE
GUTTER PER CRC R337.5.4

8. VENTILATION OPENINGS FOR ENCLOSED ATTICS, ENCLOSED EAVE SOFFIT SPACES, ENCLOSED RAFTER SPACES FORMED
WHERE CEILINGS ARE APPLIED DIRECTLY TO THE UNDERSIDE OF ROOF RAFTERS, AND UNDER FLOOR VENTILATION
OPENINGS SHALL BE FULLY COVERED WITH METAL WIRE MESH, VENTS, OTHER MATERIALS OR OTHER DEVICES THAT MEET
THE FOLLOWING REQUIREMENTS PER CRC R337.6.2

8.1.  DIMENSIONS OF THE OPENINGS SHALL BE A MINIMUM 1
16" AND SHALL NOT EXCEED 18"

9. MATERIALS USED SHALL BE NONCOMBUSTIBLE AND CORROSION RESISTANT
10. VENTS SHALL NOT BE INSTALLED ON THE UNDERSIDE OF EAVES AND CORNICES PER CRC R337.6.3.
11. THE EXPOSED UNDERSIDE OF EXTERIOR PORCH CEILINGS SHALL BE PROTECTED BY 0 NE OF THE FOLLOWING PER CRC

R337.7.6.
11.1. NONCOMBUSTIBLE MATERIAL.
11.2. IGNITION-RESISTANT MATERIAL

11.3. ONE LAYER OF 58" TYPE 'X' GYPSUM SHEATHING APPLIED BEHIND THE EXTERIOR COVERING ON THE UNDERSIDE OF THE
CEILING.

11.4. THE EXTERIOR PARTITION OF A 1-HOUR FIRE RESISTIVE EXTERIOR WALL ASSEMBLY APPLIED TO THE UNDERSIDE OF THE
CEILING ASSEMBLY INCLUDING ASSEMBLIES USING THE GYPSUM PANEL AND SHEATHING PRODUCTS LISTED IN THE
GYPSUM ASSOCIATION FIRE RESISTANT DESIGN MANUEL.

11.5. PORCH CEILING ASSEMBLIES WITH A HORIZONTAL UNDERSIDE THAT MEET THE PERFORMANCE CRITERIA IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE TEST PROCEDURES SET FORTH IN SFM STANDARD 12-7A-3.

A04 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

A06

ARCHITECTURAL

ARCHITECTURAL DETAILS

10'-0"

SIDE 4'-0"

REAR 4'-0"

TOTAL

EXISTING 1ST-STORY

NA

NA

62'-2 12"

15'-0"

598 SF

640 SF

A03D DIMENSIONED FLOOR PLAN

SITE

CA
M

ER
O

N 
CL

A
RK

,
D

RA
FT

S
M

A
N

P
H:

 8
18

.6
0

6
.4

0
4

8

3
77

 P
RI

NC
ET

O
N 

A
VE

NU
E

DATE:

A
LL

 ID
E

A
S

, D
E

S
IG

N
S

 A
N

D
 P

LA
N

S
 IN

D
IC

A
TE

D

O
R

 R
E

P
R

E
S

E
N

TE
D

 B
Y

 T
H

E
S

E
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

A
R

E
 O

W
N

E
D

 B
Y

 A
N

D
 A

R
E

 T
H

E
 P

R
O

P
E

R
TY

 O
F

K
E

VI
N

 A
. C

LA
R

K
, I

N
C

. A
N

D
 W

E
R

E
 C

R
E

A
TE

D

A
N

D
 D

E
VE

LO
P

E
D

 F
O

R
 U

S
E

 IN
 C

O
N

N
E

C
TO

N

W
IT

H
 T

H
E

 S
P

E
C

IF
IE

D
 P

R
O

JE
C

T.
  N

O
N

E
 O

F

S
U

C
H

  I
D

E
A

S
, D

E
S

IG
N

S
 O

R
 P

LA
N

S
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E

U
S

E
D

 F
O

R
 A

N
Y

 P
U

R
P

O
S

E
D

 W
H

A
TS

O
E

VE
R

W
IT

H
O

U
T 

TH
E

 W
R

IT
TE

N
 P

E
R

M
IS

S
IO

N
 O

F

K
E

VI
N

 A
. C

LA
R

K
,IN

C
.

C
O

P
Y

R
IG

H
T 

N
O

TI
C

E

REVISIONS

1/03/2023

VE
NT

UR
A

, C
A

 9
3

0
0

3

C
A

M
ER

O
N

 A
. C

LA
RK

D
EV

IN
 W

IT
T

56
9 

TI
C

O
 R

O
A

D
O

JA
I, 

C
A

 9
30

23

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 A

D
U

CO
VE

R 
S

HE
ET

A01

EXISTING 2ND-STORY 640 SF

666 SFEXISTING GARAGE

96 SFEXISTING SHED

640 SF

640 SF

666 SF

96 SF

EXISTING SFR TOTAL 1,280 SF1,280 SF

Page 90 of 139



TICO ROAD

2
0

'-0
"

FR
O

N
T 

Y
A

R
D

 S
E

TB
A

C
K

2
3

'-4
1 2" 3

1'-
5

1 2"

15'-01
2"

20'-9"

4
0

'-4
3

4"

45'-4
3

4"

10'-0"

15'-0
"

25'-4
"

4'-0"

SYSB

4
'-0

"

RY
S

B

PROPOSED ADU

598 SQFT

13
2

'-2
1

4"

109'-3
1 2"

8
1'-4

3
4"

10
0

'-0
1 4
"

73'-41
4"

15'-6
3 4"

22'-7
1

2"

62'-2
1

2"

(E) TO BE

REMOVED

(E) SHED

96 SQFT

EXISTING GARAGE

666 SQFT

EXISTING

2-STORY RESIDENCE

1ST STORY = 640 SQFT

2ND STORY = 640 SQFT

TOTAL = 1,280 SQFT

APN# 017-0-250-200

4'-0"

SYSB

UNCOVERED PARKING SPACE

UNCOVERED PARKING SPACE

EXISTING

DRIVEWAY

P
RO

P
O

S
ED

 A
D

U 
- S

IT
E 

P
LA

N
CA

M
ER

O
N 

CL
A

RK
,

D
RA

FT
S

M
A

N
P

H:
 8

18
.6

0
6

.4
0

4
8

3
77

 P
RI

NC
ET

O
N 

A
VE

NU
E

DATE:

A
LL

 ID
E

A
S

, D
E

S
IG

N
S

 A
N

D
 P

LA
N

S
 IN

D
IC

A
TE

D

O
R

 R
E

P
R

E
S

E
N

TE
D

 B
Y

 T
H

E
S

E
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

A
R

E
 O

W
N

E
D

 B
Y

 A
N

D
 A

R
E

 T
H

E
 P

R
O

P
E

R
TY

 O
F

K
E

VI
N

 A
. C

LA
R

K
, I

N
C

. A
N

D
 W

E
R

E
 C

R
E

A
TE

D

A
N

D
 D

E
VE

LO
P

E
D

 F
O

R
 U

S
E

 IN
 C

O
N

N
E

C
TO

N

W
IT

H
 T

H
E

 S
P

E
C

IF
IE

D
 P

R
O

JE
C

T.
  N

O
N

E
 O

F

S
U

C
H

  I
D

E
A

S
, D

E
S

IG
N

S
 O

R
 P

LA
N

S
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E

U
S

E
D

 F
O

R
 A

N
Y

 P
U

R
P

O
S

E
D

 W
H

A
TS

O
E

VE
R

W
IT

H
O

U
T 

TH
E

 W
R

IT
TE

N
 P

E
R

M
IS

S
IO

N
 O

F

K
E

VI
N

 A
. C

LA
R

K
,IN

C
.

C
O

P
Y

R
IG

H
T 

N
O

TI
C

E

REVISIONS

1/03/2023

VE
NT

UR
A

, C
A

 9
3

0
0

3

C
A

M
ER

O
N

 A
. C

LA
RK

D
EV

IN
 W

IT
T

56
9 

TI
C

O
 R

O
A

D
O

JA
I, 

C
A

 9
30

23

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 A

D
U

SITE PLAN

(plan north)                                                  SCALE: 1
8" = 1' - 0"

A02

NEW 2x STUD WALL, PER PLAN

- SMOKE DETECTOR HARD IN ALL SLEEPING AREAS.
- CARBON MONOXIDE ALARM.
- EXHAUST FAN - CEILING MOUNTED (VENTED TO OUTSIDE AIR).

-

SEE SHEET 'A11' FOR EXTENDED NOTES &  ITEM DESCRIPTIONS.

1. SMOKE DET. & CO ALARM.
2. HABITABLE SPACES.
3. SECONDARY MEANS OF EXIT.
4. SAFETY GLAZING.
5. FIRE RATED GARAGE WALLS.
6. FLOORS IN GARAGE.
7. LEVELED LANDING.
8. DECKING SYSTEM.
9. STAIRWAY REQUIREMENTS.
10. PARAPET & RAILING.
11. WROUGHT-IRON HANDRAIL.
12. TUB OR SHOWER.
13. WATER CLOSETS.
14. EXHAUST FAN.
15. SCUPPER.
16. WASHER/DRYER SPACE.

17. DISHWASHER SPACE.
18. REFRIGERATOR/ FREEZER SPACE.
19. COOK TOP/ OVEN.
20. BUILT-IN CABINETRY/ CLOSET.
21. BUILT-IN BOOK SHELVES.
22. COUNTER TOP.
23. KITCHEN SINK.
24. BAR SINK/ UTILITY SINK.
25. FIREPLACE & CHIMNEY SYSTEM.
26. FIREPLACE NOTES.
27. WATER HEATER.
28. NATURAL & ARTIFICIAL LIGHT.
29. ATTIC ACCESS.
30. ROOF HATCH.
31. HAND TOOL INT. CORNERS.
32. DUMBWAITER.
33. GARAGE TURNTABLE.

GROSS

EXISTING RESIDENCE

EXISTING GARAGE

1,280 SF

666 SF

NEWLY INSTALLED BATHROOM EXHAUST FANS, NOT FUNCTIONING AS A
COMPONENT OF A WHOLE HOUSE VENTILATION SYSTEM, MUST BE CONTROLLED
BY A HUMIDISTAT WHICH SHALL BE READILY ACCESSIBLE.

PLAN NOTES

AREA SUMMARY

WALL LEGEND

MECHANICAL SYMBOLS & LEGEND

EXISTING SHED 96 SF

PROPOSED ADU 598 SF

Page 91 of 139



RIDGE

3
" : 12"

S
LO

P
E

1'-0"
OH

6
"

O
H

3
" : 12"

S
LO

P
E

6
"

O
H

1'-0"
OH

GABLE ENDGABLE END

A04
3

1
A04

A04
2

A04
4

A04
3

1
A04

A04
2

A04
4

WH

D
W

R
E

F
KITCHEN, DINING &

LIVING AREA

BEDROOM
#2

MASTER
BEDROOM

1

1

1

FAU

LINEN

13 14

12

3

3

17

16

13

18

27

22

PROPOSED ADU FLOOR PLAN

(plan north)                                                  SCALE: 1
4" = 1' - 0"

PROPOSED ADU ROOF PLAN

(plan north)                                                  SCALE: 1
4" = 1' - 0"

NEW 2x STUD WALL, PER PLAN

- SMOKE DETECTOR HARD IN ALL SLEEPING AREAS.
- CARBON MONOXIDE ALARM.
- EXHAUST FAN - CEILING MOUNTED (VENTED TO OUTSIDE AIR).

-

SEE SHEET 'A11' FOR EXTENDED NOTES &  ITEM DESCRIPTIONS.

1. SMOKE DET. & CO ALARM.
2. HABITABLE SPACES.
3. SECONDARY MEANS OF EXIT.
4. SAFETY GLAZING.
5. FIRE RATED GARAGE WALLS.
6. FLOORS IN GARAGE.
7. LEVELED LANDING.
8. DECKING SYSTEM.
9. STAIRWAY REQUIREMENTS.
10. PARAPET & RAILING.
11. WROUGHT-IRON HANDRAIL.
12. TUB OR SHOWER.
13. WATER CLOSETS.
14. EXHAUST FAN.
15. SCUPPER.
16. WASHER/DRYER SPACE.

17. DISHWASHER SPACE.
18. REFRIGERATOR/ FREEZER SPACE.
19. COOK TOP/ OVEN.
20. BUILT-IN CABINETRY/ CLOSET.
21. BUILT-IN BOOK SHELVES.
22. COUNTER TOP.
23. KITCHEN SINK.
24. BAR SINK/ UTILITY SINK.
25. FIREPLACE & CHIMNEY SYSTEM.
26. FIREPLACE NOTES.
27. WATER HEATER.
28. NATURAL & ARTIFICIAL LIGHT.
29. ATTIC ACCESS.
30. ROOF HATCH.
31. HAND TOOL INT. CORNERS.
32. DUMBWAITER.
33. GARAGE TURNTABLE.

GROSS

EXISTING RESIDENCE

EXISTING GARAGE

1,280 SF

666 SF

NEWLY INSTALLED BATHROOM EXHAUST FANS, NOT FUNCTIONING AS A
COMPONENT OF A WHOLE HOUSE VENTILATION SYSTEM, MUST BE CONTROLLED
BY A HUMIDISTAT WHICH SHALL BE READILY ACCESSIBLE.

PLAN NOTES

AREA SUMMARYWALL LEGEND

NET

MECHANICAL SYMBOLS & LEGEND

CA
M

ER
O

N 
CL

A
RK

,
D

RA
FT

S
M

A
N

P
H:

 8
18

.6
0

6
.4

0
4

8

3
77

 P
RI

NC
ET

O
N 

A
VE

NU
E

DATE:

A
LL

 ID
E

A
S

, D
E

S
IG

N
S

 A
N

D
 P

LA
N

S
 IN

D
IC

A
TE

D

O
R

 R
E

P
R

E
S

E
N

TE
D

 B
Y

 T
H

E
S

E
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

A
R

E
 O

W
N

E
D

 B
Y

 A
N

D
 A

R
E

 T
H

E
 P

R
O

P
E

R
TY

 O
F

K
E

VI
N

 A
. C

LA
R

K
, I

N
C

. A
N

D
 W

E
R

E
 C

R
E

A
TE

D

A
N

D
 D

E
VE

LO
P

E
D

 F
O

R
 U

S
E

 IN
 C

O
N

N
E

C
TO

N

W
IT

H
 T

H
E

 S
P

E
C

IF
IE

D
 P

R
O

JE
C

T.
  N

O
N

E
 O

F

S
U

C
H

  I
D

E
A

S
, D

E
S

IG
N

S
 O

R
 P

LA
N

S
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E

U
S

E
D

 F
O

R
 A

N
Y

 P
U

R
P

O
S

E
D

 W
H

A
TS

O
E

VE
R

W
IT

H
O

U
T 

TH
E

 W
R

IT
TE

N
 P

E
R

M
IS

S
IO

N
 O

F

K
E

VI
N

 A
. C

LA
R

K
,IN

C
.

C
O

P
Y

R
IG

H
T 

N
O

TI
C

E

REVISIONS

1/03/2023

VE
NT

UR
A

, C
A

 9
3

0
0

3

C
A

M
ER

O
N

 A
. C

LA
RK

D
EV

IN
 W

IT
T

56
9 

TI
C

O
 R

O
A

D
O

JA
I, 

C
A

 9
30

23

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 A

D
U

A03

P
RO

P
O

S
ED

 A
D

U 
- F

LO
O

R 
P

LA
N 

&
 R

O
O

F 
P

LA
N

EXISTING SHED 96 SF

PROPOSED ADU 598 SF

Page 92 of 139



12'-4"

30'-0"

5'-51
2"9'-10"2'-41

2"

2
'-4

"

2
0

'-0
"

7'
-4

"
10

'-4
"

8'-31
2"

30'-0"

2'-4" 2'-91
2" 14'-31

4" 2'-4"

10
'-0

"

2
0

'-0
"

2
'-5

"
7'

-7
"

WH

D
W

R
E

F
KITCHEN, DINING &

LIVING AREA

BEDROOM
#2

MASTER
BEDROOM

1

1

1

FAU

LINEN

NEW 2x STUD WALL, PER PLAN

- SMOKE DETECTOR HARD IN ALL SLEEPING AREAS.
- CARBON MONOXIDE ALARM.
- EXHAUST FAN - CEILING MOUNTED (VENTED TO OUTSIDE AIR).

-

SEE SHEET 'A11' FOR EXTENDED NOTES &  ITEM DESCRIPTIONS.

1. SMOKE DET. & CO ALARM.
2. HABITABLE SPACES.
3. SECONDARY MEANS OF EXIT.
4. SAFETY GLAZING.
5. FIRE RATED GARAGE WALLS.
6. FLOORS IN GARAGE.
7. LEVELED LANDING.
8. DECKING SYSTEM.
9. STAIRWAY REQUIREMENTS.
10. PARAPET & RAILING.
11. WROUGHT-IRON HANDRAIL.
12. TUB OR SHOWER.
13. WATER CLOSETS.
14. EXHAUST FAN.
15. SCUPPER.
16. WASHER/DRYER SPACE.

17. DISHWASHER SPACE.
18. REFRIGERATOR/ FREEZER SPACE.
19. COOK TOP/ OVEN.
20. BUILT-IN CABINETRY/ CLOSET.
21. BUILT-IN BOOK SHELVES.
22. COUNTER TOP.
23. KITCHEN SINK.
24. BAR SINK/ UTILITY SINK.
25. FIREPLACE & CHIMNEY SYSTEM.
26. FIREPLACE NOTES.
27. WATER HEATER.
28. NATURAL & ARTIFICIAL LIGHT.
29. ATTIC ACCESS.
30. ROOF HATCH.
31. HAND TOOL INT. CORNERS.
32. DUMBWAITER.
33. GARAGE TURNTABLE.

GROSS

EXISTING RESIDENCE

EXISTING GARAGE

1,280 SF

666 SF

NEWLY INSTALLED BATHROOM EXHAUST FANS, NOT FUNCTIONING AS A
COMPONENT OF A WHOLE HOUSE VENTILATION SYSTEM, MUST BE CONTROLLED
BY A HUMIDISTAT WHICH SHALL BE READILY ACCESSIBLE.

PLAN NOTES

AREA SUMMARYWALL LEGEND

NET

MECHANICAL SYMBOLS & LEGEND

CA
M

ER
O

N 
CL

A
RK

,
D

RA
FT

S
M

A
N

P
H:

 8
18

.6
0

6
.4

0
4

8

3
77

 P
RI

NC
ET

O
N 

A
VE

NU
E

DATE:

A
LL

 ID
E

A
S

, D
E

S
IG

N
S

 A
N

D
 P

LA
N

S
 IN

D
IC

A
TE

D

O
R

 R
E

P
R

E
S

E
N

TE
D

 B
Y

 T
H

E
S

E
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

A
R

E
 O

W
N

E
D

 B
Y

 A
N

D
 A

R
E

 T
H

E
 P

R
O

P
E

R
TY

 O
F

K
E

VI
N

 A
. C

LA
R

K
, I

N
C

. A
N

D
 W

E
R

E
 C

R
E

A
TE

D

A
N

D
 D

E
VE

LO
P

E
D

 F
O

R
 U

S
E

 IN
 C

O
N

N
E

C
TO

N

W
IT

H
 T

H
E

 S
P

E
C

IF
IE

D
 P

R
O

JE
C

T.
  N

O
N

E
 O

F

S
U

C
H

  I
D

E
A

S
, D

E
S

IG
N

S
 O

R
 P

LA
N

S
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E

U
S

E
D

 F
O

R
 A

N
Y

 P
U

R
P

O
S

E
D

 W
H

A
TS

O
E

VE
R

W
IT

H
O

U
T 

TH
E

 W
R

IT
TE

N
 P

E
R

M
IS

S
IO

N
 O

F

K
E

VI
N

 A
. C

LA
R

K
,IN

C
.

C
O

P
Y

R
IG

H
T 

N
O

TI
C

E

REVISIONS

1/03/2023

VE
NT

UR
A

, C
A

 9
3

0
0

3

C
A

M
ER

O
N

 A
. C

LA
RK

D
EV

IN
 W

IT
T

56
9 

TI
C

O
 R

O
A

D
O

JA
I, 

C
A

 9
30

23

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 A

D
U

PROPOSED DIMENSIONED ADU FLOOR PLAN

(plan north)                                                      SCALE: 1
4" = 1' - 0"

A03D

P
RO

P
O

S
ED

 A
D

U 
- D

IM
EN

S
IO

NE
D

 F
LO

O
R 

P
LA

N

EXISTING SHED 96 SF

PROPOSED ADU 598 SF

Page 93 of 139



1
6

'-0
"

H
EI

G
H
T 

LI
M

IT

1
1

'-3
1 4
"

TO
P 

O
F 

R
ID

G
E

30'-0"
PROPOSED ADU

1
6
'-0

"
H
EI

G
H
T 

LI
M

IT

1
1
'-3

1 4
"

TO
P 

O
F 

R
ID

G
E

20'-0"
PROPOSED ADU

12
3

12
3

1
6

'-0
"

H
EI

G
H
T 

LI
M

IT

1
1

'-3
1 4
"

TO
P 

O
F 

R
ID

G
E

30'-0"
PROPOSED ADU

1
6
'-0

"
H
EI

G
H
T 

LI
M

IT

1
1
'-3

1 4
"

TO
P 

O
F 

R
ID

G
E

12
3

12
3

20'-0"
PROPOSED ADU

SCALE: 1
4"=1'-0"

WITT ADU - NORTH ELEVATION
3

SCALE: 1
4"=1'-0"

WITT ADU - EAST ELEVATION
4

SCALE: 1
4"=1'-0"

WITT ADU - SOUTH ELEVATION
1 SCALE: 1

4"=1'-0"

WITT ADU - WEST ELEVATION
2

CA
M

ER
O

N 
CL

A
RK

,
D

RA
FT

S
M

A
N

P
H:

 8
18

.6
0

6
.4

0
4

8

3
77

 P
RI

NC
ET

O
N 

A
VE

NU
E

DATE:

A
LL

 ID
E

A
S

, D
E

S
IG

N
S

 A
N

D
 P

LA
N

S
 IN

D
IC

A
TE

D

O
R

 R
E

P
R

E
S

E
N

TE
D

 B
Y

 T
H

E
S

E
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

A
R

E
 O

W
N

E
D

 B
Y

 A
N

D
 A

R
E

 T
H

E
 P

R
O

P
E

R
TY

 O
F

K
E

VI
N

 A
. C

LA
R

K
, I

N
C

. A
N

D
 W

E
R

E
 C

R
E

A
TE

D

A
N

D
 D

E
VE

LO
P

E
D

 F
O

R
 U

S
E

 IN
 C

O
N

N
E

C
TO

N

W
IT

H
 T

H
E

 S
P

E
C

IF
IE

D
 P

R
O

JE
C

T.
  N

O
N

E
 O

F

S
U

C
H

  I
D

E
A

S
, D

E
S

IG
N

S
 O

R
 P

LA
N

S
 S

H
A

LL
 B

E

U
S

E
D

 F
O

R
 A

N
Y

 P
U

R
P

O
S

E
D

 W
H

A
TS

O
E

VE
R

W
IT

H
O

U
T 

TH
E

 W
R

IT
TE

N
 P

E
R

M
IS

S
IO

N
 O

F

K
E

VI
N

 A
. C

LA
R

K
,IN

C
.

C
O

P
Y

R
IG

H
T 

N
O

TI
C

E

REVISIONS

1/03/2023

VE
NT

UR
A

, C
A

 9
3

0
0

3

C
A

M
ER

O
N

 A
. C

LA
RK

D
EV

IN
 W

IT
T

56
9 

TI
C

O
 R

O
A

D
O

JA
I, 

C
A

 9
30

23

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 A

D
U

A04

P
RO

P
O

S
ED

 A
D

U 
- E

XT
ER

IO
R 

EL
EV

A
TI

O
NS

Page 94 of 139



Page 95 of 139



Page 96 of 139



Page 97 of 139



Page 98 of 139



Page 99 of 139



Page 100 of 139



Page 101 of 139



Page 102 of 139



Review of Application for Will Serve Letter  

New Tiny Home ADU for Property with Existing Meter at 138 S. Alvarado. 

Proposal 

The proposed project consists of adding a new Tiny Home ADU. Applicant provided a detailed site plan, showing 
the location of the proposed structure. 

Screening Step 1:  Is the proposed building site on a legal lot? YES 

Applicant provided a copy of a tax assessor parcel map and a subdivision map that indicate a single 0.17-acre 
parcel.  APN: 017-0-141-06 

Screening Step 2. Will the current allocation support an ADU? YES 

Allocation Details: 

• Allocation Case Identifier: AA-0308 
• Allocation Category: 5/8" RES meter, 1 Parcel 
• Parcel Size: 0.17 acre  
• Current Base Fixed Allocation: 120 HCF/yr 
• Current Base Variable Allocation: 103 HCF/yr  
• Fixed Base Allocation Needed to Support ADU: 60 HCF/yr 
• Deduction from Variable Allocation needed to Support ADU through drought stages: 70 HCF/yr 

If the ADU are provided the customary fixed dwelling allocations, the new allocation for this property would be 
as follows: 

• New Base Fixed Allocation:  180 HCF/yr 
• New Base Variable Allocation: 33 HCF/yr  

Recommendation 

If a will serve letter is to be supplied, but must clearly state: 

• Letter applies only to the proposed ADU as described in the applicant-provided preliminary site plan 
with the file date 1-20-2023 

• There will be no increase in the total (fixed plus variable) water allocation assigned to the meter Will 
Serve Letter will expire after 1 year. 

Page 103 of 139



T-0

COVER SHEET
PROJ INFO
SITE PLAN
VIC MAP

ft .hill
F O O T H I L L  D E S I G N  G R O U P

1/8" = 1'-0"
SITE PLAN

PROJECT SCOPE

PROJECT INFORMATION

SHEET INDEX

VICINITY MAP

ALL WORK AND MATERIALS SHALL BE PERFORMED
AND INSTALLED IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE CURRENT
EDITIONS OF THE FOLLOWING CODES AS ADOPTED BY
THE LOCAL GOVERNING AUTHORITIES.

2020  VENTURA COUNTY BUILDING CODE / ORDINANCES
2020  CALIFORNIA GREEN BLDG STAND CODE
2020 CALIFORNIA BUILDING CODE
2020  CALIFORNIA RESIDENTIAL CODE
2020  CALIFORNIA ELECTRICAL CODE
2020  CALIFORNIA MECHANICAL CODE
2020  CALIFORNIA PLUMBING CODE
2020  CALIFORNIA ENERGY CODE
2020  CALIFORNIA FIRE CODE
2020  CALIFORNIA TITLE 24

BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES

CODE COMPLIANCE

ALL OF THE FOLLOWING MUST BE FOLLOWED

ERODED SEDIMENTS AND OTHER POLLUTANTS MUST BE RETAINED ON SITE AND MAY
NOT BE TRANSPORTED FROM THE SITE VIA SHEET FLOW, SWALES, ARE DRAINS,
NATURAL DRAINAGE COURSES OR WIND.

STOCKPILES OF EARTH  AND OTHER CONSTRUCTION RELATED MATERIALS MUST BE
PROTECTED FROM BEING TRANSPORTED FROM THE SITE BY THE FORCES OF WIND OR
WATER.

FUELS, OILS, SOLVENTS AND OTHER TOXIC MATERIALS MUST BE STORED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THEIR LISTING AND ARE NOT TO CONTAMINATE THE SOIL AND
SURFACE WATERS.  ALL APPROVED STORAGE CONTAINERS  ARE TO BE PROTECTED
FROM THE WEATHER.  SPILLS MAY NOT BE WASHED INTO THE DRAINAGE SYSTEM.

EXCESS OR WASTE CONCRETE MAY NOT BE WASHED INTO THE PUBLIC WAY OR ANY
OTHER DRAINAGE SYSTEM.  PROVISIONS MUST BE MADE TO RETAIN CONCRETE
WASTES ON SITE UNTIL THEY CAN BE DISPOSED OF AS A SOLID WASTE.

TRASH AND CONSTRUCTION RELATED SOLID WASTES MUST BE DEPOSITED INTO A
COVERED RECEPTACLE TO PREVENT CONTAMINATION OF RAINWATER AND DISPERSAL
BY WIND.

SEDIMENTS AND OTHER MATERIAL MAY NOT BE TRACED FROM THE SITE BY VEHICLE
TRAFFIC.  THE CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE ROADWAYS MUST BE STABILIZED SO AS TO
INHIBIT SEDIMENTS FROM BEING DEPOSITED INTO THE PUBLIC WAY.  ACCIDENTAL
DEPOSITIONS MUST BE SWEPT UP IMMEDIATELY AND MAY NOT BE WASHED DOWN BY
RAIN OR OTHER MEANS.

ANY SLOPE WITH DISTURBED SOILS OR DEMANDED OF VEGETATION MUST BE
STABILIZED SO AS TO INHIBIT EROSION BY WIND AND WATER.

      OJAI,
CALIFORNIA

138
S. ALVARADO
AVENUE

Ray Ames - Designer

   2309 Aztec Ave
Ventura, CA  93001
    (805) 407-9327
fthillray@yahoo.com
foothilldesigngroup.com
houzz.com/pro/fthillray

1.19.23

12

3

4
5

6

9

87

44
'

11

9

9

10

60.00'

12
5.

00
'

12
5.

00
'

60.00'
PL

PL

PL

PL

15'-7"

3'
-2

"

3'-1"

3'
-8

"

3'-3"

3'-3"

7'-9"

33
'-1

1"

SITE / ADDRESS: 138 S. ALVARADO AVE.,
OJAI, CA  93023

OWNER/ADDRESS:   JENNIFER MOSES &
CHRIS KIRKEGAARD
138 S. ALVARADO AVE.,
OJAI, CA  93023

       
APN: 017014106

 
LOT SIZE: .17 ACRE

ZONE: R1-10,000
         

OCCUPANCY:                        R-3

CONST TYPE:                   TYPE V-B

NO. STORIES:                            1

FIRE SEVERITY AREA: NO

FIRE SPRINKLERS: NO

(E) AREAS          SF

(E) RESIDENCE: 952

(E) CARPORT: 300

(E) WORKSHOP 1: 186

(E) STORAGE SHED: 80

(E) WORKSHOP 2: 404
(TO BE CONVERTED
TO ADU)

(N) ADU: 404

CONVERSION OF (E) WORKSHOP INTO A
404 SF ACCESSORY DWELLING UNIT (ADU).

T-0            COVER SHEET, SITE PLAN, PROJECT INFO
                  VICINITY MAP

A-1 FLOOR PLAN & ELEVATIONS

(E) RESIDENCE

(E) CARPORT

(E) WORKSHOP 1

(E) STORAGE SHED

(E) WORKSHOP 2 - CONVERSION TO ADU

(E) COVERED PORCH

(E) DRIVEWAY

FRONT YARD

(E) WOOD FENCE

(E) LOW WALL

MIN 6" FALL FOR FIRST 10 FEET AWAY
FROM THE STRUCTURE

2

3

4

KEYED NOTES
1

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

Page 104 of 139



A-1

FLOOR PLAN
         &
ELEVATIONS

ft .hill
F O O T H I L L  D E S I G N  G R O U P

1/8" = 1'-0"
ADU FLOOR PLAN

      OJAI,
CALIFORNIA

138
S. ALVARADO
AVENUE

Ray Ames - Designer

   2309 Aztec Ave
Ventura, CA  93001
    (805) 407-9327
fthillray@yahoo.com
foothilldesigngroup.com
houzz.com/pro/fthillray

1.19.23

1/8" = 1'-0"
WEST / FRONT ELEVATION

1/8" = 1'-0"
EAST / REAR ELEVATION

1/8" = 1'-0"
SOUTH / RIGHT ELEVATION

1/8" = 1'-0"
NORTH / LEFT ELEVATION

LIVING
 AREA

ENTRY

BATH

KITCHEN

COVERED PORCH LAUND

28'-6"

14
'

3'
-1

1"

17
'-1

1"

1

2

10
'-1

"

3 3

4

5
6

7

8

9

10
'-1

"

3

4

10
'-1

" 11
'-1

0"

3

4

5

6

10
'-1

" 11
'-1

0"

3

4

5

9

Page 105 of 139



Page 106 of 139



Page 107 of 139



Page 108 of 139



Page 109 of 139



Page 110 of 139



Page 111 of 139



Page 112 of 139



Page 113 of 139



Page 114 of 139



Page 115 of 139



Page 116 of 139



Page 117 of 139



Page 118 of 139



 
 

 

Migration of Phone & Internet Services 
 

Meiners Oaks Water District has been with AT&T for phone and internet services; however, staff 
evaluated other service options due to ongoing service issues, poor customer service, and increasing 
rate charges.  
 
MOWD has used Mitec Solutions in Ventura for IT services for the past ten years. Mitec Solutions 
offers competitive phone and internet services. The additional benefit of Mitec Solutions is that its 
technical support team is local and understands MOWD’s IT configurations and needs.  
 
Mitec’s Elevate Pro Telco will allow the District to: 

• Manage the phone lines internally with staff extensions (not offered by AT&T); 
o Ability to forward staff extensions to mobile devices; 

• Offers a platform for online meetings (replace GoToMeeting monthly expense);  
• Ability to create an office schedule with auto-dial after-hours emergency calls (not offered with 

AT&T);  
• Messaging capabilities (text, photo, and video – not offered with AT&T);  
• Web fax at no cost (currently an additional phone line expense with AT&T). 

 
Fiscal Impact: 
 

Service AT&T (Current) Mitec Solutions 
(Proposed) 

Difference 

Phone Lines - Monthly $842.49 $161.47 ($681.02) 
Phone Lines – Initial Setup - $1,149.90 $1,149.90 
Fax $61.53 $0 ($61.53) 
Internet - Monthly $171.20 $69.99 ($101.21) 
Internet – Initial Setup - $599.00 $599.00 
GoToMeeting (Not AT&T) $10.00 $0 ($10.00) 
Monthly Total $1,075.22 $231.46 ($853.76) 
One-Time Fee - $1,748.90 $1,748.90 

 
 
Recommended Action:  
Approve the one-time and ongoing monthly expenses of migrating phone and internet services from 
AT&T over to Mitec Solutions, with initial rates not exceeding $300 monthly and a $2,000 one-time 
setup. District Staff will research a satellite phone for emergency situations. 

Page 119 of 139



 

Product Description Qty
Unit

Price
Price

Elevate Pro Telco Fees
- Monthly Service

Elevate Pro Telco
Fees - Per User -

Subject to change
based on usage -

Monthly Service Fees
include the Regulatory

Compliance Fee,
Emergency Services

Surcharge, and
Administrative

Surcharge.

1 $
4.58

$
4.58

Web Fax - Monthly
Service

Fax using the Internet
instead of traditional

POTS Fax Line. -
Monthly Service

1 $
0.00

$
0.00

Elevate Essentials -
Monthly Service

Elevate Essentials - 1
x User - Monthly

Service Unlimited local
& long-distance

calling, connection to 1

3 $
29.99

$
89.97

Quote #:

00001028

This quote expires

February 24, 2023

Hi !
I hope your day is going well so far!

 

Thank you for supporting your local Internet Service Provider! We look
forward to providing you with outstanding service.

 

Page 120 of 139



device, Chat, Online
Meeting (4 web
participants per

meeting). 1 license is
required for each user

in the organization.

Elevate Essentials
Telco Taxes - Monthly

Service

Elevate Essentials
Telco Taxes - Per
User - Subject to
change based on

usage - Monthly
Service Taxes include
Federal, State, Local,
and Municipal. Teleco

taxes as applicable per
billing address.

3 $
3.25

$
9.75

Elevate Essentials
Telco Fees - Monthly

Service

Elevate Essentials
Telco Fees - Per User

- Subject to change
based on usage -

Monthly Service Fees
include the Regulatory

Compliance Fee,
Emergency Services

Surcharge, and
Administrative

Surcharge.

3 $
4.58

$
13.74

Auto Attendant -
Monthly Service

The Auto Attendant is
for automated call

routing. Monthly
Service

1 $
0.00

$
0.00

Add-on Phone Number
- Monthly Service

Additional phone
numbers are needed
for services such as
fax, etc., or numbers
that are ported from

2 $
1.99

$
3.98

Page 121 of 139



your previous phone
service provider &

used with our phone
service for DID or

other purposes.

Elevate Pro - Monthly
Service

Elevate Pro - 1 x User
- Monthly Service

Unlimited local and
long-distance calling,
connection to up to 5

devices, Chat, File
Sharing (10 GB/user),

Online Meeting (100
web participants per

meeting). 1 license is
required for each user.

1 $
34.99

$
34.99

Elevate Pro Telco
Taxes - Monthly

Service

Elevate Pro Telco
Taxes - Per User -
Subject to change
based on usage -

Monthly Service Taxes
include Federal, State,

Local, and Municipal.
Teleco taxes as

applicable per billing
address.

1 $
4.46

$
4.46

 
Total

$ 161.47

Please let us know if you have any questions or concerns in the meantime.

 
If you'd like to move forward please respond to this email or call our office at .805-643-4375

Have a great day!

Page 122 of 139



 

 
Anthony Andre
 

Mitec Internet
 

2110 E. Thompson Blvd.
 

Ventura, CA 93001
 

805-643-4375

sales@mitec.net

Connect With Us:

Facebook

Twitter

Google

Yelp

Contact Info:

Phone: 805-643-4375

Email: sales@mitec.net

2110 E Thompson Blvd.

Ventura, CA 93001

Page 123 of 139

https://www.facebook.com/mitecsolutions/
https://twitter.com/mitecsolutions_/
https://www.google.com/search?q=mitec+solutions+google+review&oq=mitec+solutions+google+review&aqs=chrome..69i57.6184j0j8&sourceid=chrome&ie=UTF-8#lrd=0x80e9ad22f6ced2a7:0xb4b3c6cc181081d4,1,
https://www.yelp.com/biz/mitec-solutions-ventura


 

Product Description Qty
Unit

Price
Price

Hardware Special
Order - Onetime Fee

Yealink Cordless
Handset Wireless

Base - Supports Up
To 8 Cordless

Handsets - 1 Year
Manufacturer

Hardware Warranty /
30-Day Mitec

Warranty

1 $
129.99

$
129.99

Hardware Special
Order - Onetime Fee

Yealink Cordless
VoIP Phone - 1 Year

Manufacturer
Hardware Warranty /

30-Day Mitec
Warranty

4 $
249.99

$
999.96

Standard Shipping -
Onetime Fee

Standard Hardware
Shipping 7-10

Business Days. -
Onetime Fee

1 $
24.92

$
24.92

Quote #:

00001029

This quote expires

February 24, 2023

Hi !
I hope your day is going well so far!

 

Thank you for supporting your local Internet Service Provider! We look
forward to providing you with outstanding service.

 

Page 124 of 139



Remote VoIP Labor -
Onetime Fee

Remote Labor -
Onetime Fee

2 $
120.00

$
240.00

Port Number Fee -
Onetime Fee

This onetime fee is
per local phone

number that is being
ported from your
previous phone

service provider to
us. - Onetime Fee

3 $
19.99

$
29.98

Onsite Labor VoIP -
Onetime Fee

Setup users, Auto
Attendant, Call &
Paging Groups,

Configure Phone
Hardware, Setup

Wefax, and/or
Traditional Fax

Adapters if needed.
Install Elevate apps,

and train clients to
use the new system.

5 $
145.00

$
725.00

VoIP Phone
Hardware Discount

Requires a 1-year
agreement. **If the

subscriber terminates
service before the

1-year agreement is
fulfilled, they will be
responsible for the

full price of the phone
hardware plus any

return shipping costs
and sales taxes.**

4 $-
249.99

$-
999.96

 
Total

$ 1,149.90

Page 125 of 139



 

Please let us know if you have any questions or concerns in the meantime.

 
If you'd like to move forward please respond to this email or call our office at .805-643-4375

Have a great day!

 
Anthony Andre
 

Mitec Internet
 

2110 E. Thompson Blvd.
 

Ventura, CA 93001
 

805-643-4375

sales@mitec.net

Connect With Us:

Facebook

Twitter

Google

Yelp

Contact Info:

Phone: 805-643-4375

Email: sales@mitec.net

2110 E Thompson Blvd.

Ventura, CA 93001

Page 126 of 139

https://www.facebook.com/mitecsolutions/
https://twitter.com/mitecsolutions_/
https://www.google.com/search?q=mitec+solutions+google+review&oq=mitec+solutions+google+review&aqs=chrome..69i57.6184j0j8&sourceid=chrome&ie=UTF-8#lrd=0x80e9ad22f6ced2a7:0xb4b3c6cc181081d4,1,
https://www.yelp.com/biz/mitec-solutions-ventura


 

Product Description Qty
Unit

Price
Price

Bronze Business
Wireless Internet -

Monthly Service

Bronze Business
Wireless 10Mbps x

10Mbps Internet -
Monthly Service -

After tower upgrade
speeds will be

20Mbps x 20Mbps
for same monthly

rate

1 $
69.99

$
69.99

Static IP - Monthly
Service

1 x Static IP -
Monthly Service

1 $
15.00

$
15.00

Wireless Installation
30" Dish & LTU Radio

- Onetime Fee

Wireless Installation
- Requires 30" Dish

and LTU Radio. -
Onetime Fee

1 $
599.00

$
599.00

Quote #:

00001030

This quote expires

September 6, 2022

Hi !
I hope your day is going well so far!

 

Thank you for supporting your local Internet Service Provider! We look
forward to providing you with outstanding service.

 

 
Total

Page 127 of 139



 

$ 683.99

Please let us know if you have any questions or concerns in the meantime.

 
If you'd like to move forward please respond to this email or call our office at .805-643-4375

Have a great day!

 
Anthony Andre
 

Mitec Internet
 

2110 E. Thompson Blvd.
 

Ventura, CA 93001
 

805-643-4375

sales@mitec.net

Connect With Us:

Facebook

Twitter

Google

Yelp

Contact Info:

Phone: 805-643-4375

Email: sales@mitec.net

2110 E Thompson Blvd.

Ventura, CA 93001

Page 128 of 139

https://www.facebook.com/mitecsolutions/
https://twitter.com/mitecsolutions_/
https://www.google.com/search?q=mitec+solutions+google+review&oq=mitec+solutions+google+review&aqs=chrome..69i57.6184j0j8&sourceid=chrome&ie=UTF-8#lrd=0x80e9ad22f6ced2a7:0xb4b3c6cc181081d4,1,
https://www.yelp.com/biz/mitec-solutions-ventura


 
 

202 W. El Roblar Drive, Ojai, California 93023 
Tel: (805) 646-2114 Web: www.meinersoakswater.com 

 

2-8-2023 

GM Temporary Salary Adjustment  

As an exempt employee paid on a salary basis, overtime analysis would not come into play.  Exempt 
employees must earn a fixed salary that is at least two times the minimum wage and perform “exempt” 
job duties including managing other individuals or departments for more than half the time.  Your job 
description confirms that these prerequisites have been met. 

Given this, The Board of Directors could decide to pay you at the same rate and give you additional 
duties, or to adjust your salary as it determines appropriate.   

Please let me know if you have any questions regarding the foregoing. 

Thanks, 

Susie  ( Light Gabler Law) 

 

The GM is requesting a temporary salary adjustment of a 20% increase, $2,361.49 per month, starting 
February 20th ending no later than August 31st. This will cover the extra workload, standby, and duties 
while recruiting for and training the District's vacant Field Operator position. One less field Operator's 
salary offsets the cost.  

Standby rotation is every other week, 14 day/month: 

14 days @    $68.12/day          =  $953.68 

8 hrs @1.5 x $68.12 (Rounds) = $817.00 

6 Call Outs (Average)                =  $613.00  

                                                        $2383.68 

 

Page 129 of 139

http://www.meinersoakswater.com/


 
 

202 W. El Roblar Drive, Ojai, California 93023 
Tel: (805) 646-2114 Web: www.meinersoakswater.com 

 

 

AMI (Advanced Metering Infrastructure) Start-Up 
 
 

Summary:  
Over the past year, MOWD has been working toward AMI. The District had applied for a grant 
through the Ventura County Resource Conservation District (VCRCD) VRIF2 process. The District 
had budgeted the recommended amount by VCRCD of $22,000 to cover the district portion of 
the grant. However, MOWD is withdrawing from the VCRCD grant. As a result, the AMI start-up 
has not yet been fully funded. 
 
Background: 
The primary purpose of this transition is to capture a greater percentage of our customers’ 
water consumption. In addition, the Eye-On-Water app, associated with smart meter 
technology, will play a significant part in conservation with early leak detection. 
 
The ultrasonic measurement system has no moving parts, provides long-term accuracy, and 
eliminates measurement errors due to sand, suspended particles, air pockets, and pressure 
fluctuations. The Badger Meter E-Series Ultrasonic meters are designed and manufactured to 
provide long-term service with no maintenance and a greater extended low flow accuracy than 
mechanical meters. E-Series Ultrasonic Meters has a 3.6-volt lithium thionyl chloride battery; 
the battery is fully encapsulated within the register housing and is not replaceable but has a 20-
year battery life. 
 
BEACON AMA (Advanced Metering Analytics) provides a wealth of powerful yet easy-to-use 
water conservation tools to help, including:  
 
• Leak analytics identify continuous flow conditions that represent potential leaks. When user-
definable usage thresholds are crossed, the system can automatically notify you via email and 
text message. BEACON also lets you export contact information for notifying customers by 
phone, email, regular mail, or door hanger.  
• Reduction Goal filters provide one-click access to accounts that met or failed to meet 
mandated water use reduction goals.  

Page 130 of 139

http://www.meinersoakswater.com/


 
 

202 W. El Roblar Drive, Ojai, California 93023 
Tel: (805) 646-2114 Web: www.meinersoakswater.com 

 

• Parity filters for monitoring usage based on whether a premise has an odd or even numbered 
street address. Parity filters let you identify and notify customers who aren’t in compliance with 
watering (irrigation) restriction rules.  
• High/Low Consumption filters for counting and selecting meters whose usage falls above or 
below utility-defined thresholds of normal water use.  
• Diurnal Demand exports let you quickly identify daily peak water demand cycles. Tracking 
daily peak demand helps manage the cost of purchasing and moving water and wastewater.  
• District Metering Area (DMA) support lets you monitor usage across your water distribution 
network. The ability to compare usage between supply meters and demand meters lets you 
spot and quantify non-revenue water at its source.  
• EyeOnWater, iOS and Android smartphone apps, along with a web portal, lets customers 
monitor their real-time water use and get notified of potential leaks via email and text 
messages. 
 
 
Recommended Actions: 
The GM recommends that the board approve the purchase of an initial 35 meters. The 35 
meters will cover Ag and Commercial meters between the sizes of 1”- 4” within the District.  
The total cost of the 35 meters needed with 12 months of cellular service is $31,209.34. 
Therefore, the District can transfer funds from System Maintenance of $11,000 to cover the 
budgeted cost difference. 
 

Page 131 of 139

http://www.meinersoakswater.com/


Badger Meter Inc. 

4545 W Brown Deer Road Milwaukee WI 53223 

PO Box 245036 Milwaukee WI 53224-9536 
 

 

 

Revised Date 
 

To
 Justin Martinez

MEINERS OAKS COUNTY WATER DIST 
202 W EL ROBLAR 
OJAI 
California 93023
 

Customer ID 00042129
 

  

Effective Dates 02-15-2023 - 08-09-2023 
 

   

Salesperson
 

Proposal Subject
 

Shipping Terms / INCO Terms
 

Payment Terms
 

008104  KEVIN BRYANT 
 

E55 TO E4/TWIST 5'/CF/CELL-
C/SERVICE UNITS (TAX &

FREIGHT) 
 

QUOTED FREIGHT 
FCA FACTORY 

 

NET 30 DAYS 
 

Line #
 Description

 

Qty
 

Unit Net Price
USD 

 

Line Totals
USD 

 

     

1 
 

 

 BMI Part No.: 109-3727 
Cat String: EB-ECA-PXTX-E5-CA-19FD-K3Y2-XXTF-XX-B0A 
Description:
E-Series Brz, 1"(10-3/4), Thk Wshr, Enc, 4CXN2 ORION, 9D-0.001 FT3,
(TS-766), SN Yr 9D & PBB, TT-5', BMI STD, 
 

14 
 

232.51 
 

3,255.07 
 

2 
 

 

 BMI Part No.: 100-1727 
Cat String: EU-EDA-PXXX-E5-CA-19GD-A5Y2-XXTF-XX-B0A 
Description:
E-Series SS, 1-1/2" EL(13), Enc, 4CXN2 ORION, 9D-0.01 FT3, SN Yr 9D
& PBB, TT-5', BMI STD, 
 

4 
 

588.21 
 

2,352.83 
 

3 
 

 

 BMI Part No.: 100-1596 
Cat String: EU-EEA-PXXX-E5-CA-19GD-A6Y2-XXTF-XX-B0A 
Description:
E-Series SS, 2" EL(17), Enc, 4CXN2 ORION, 9D-0.01 FT3, SN Yr 9D &
PBB, TT-5', BMI STD, 
 

14 
 

792.30 
 

11,092.14 
 

4 
 

 

 BMI Part No.: 103-3251 
Cat String: EB-EFC-PXXP-E5-CA-19GD-E3Y2-XXTF-XX-B0A 
Description:
E-Series Brz, 3" RND(12), TP Prsr, Enc, 4CXN2 ORION, 9D-0.01 FT3, SN
Yr 9D & PBB, TT-5', BMI STD, 
 

1 
 

1,988.86 
 

1,988.86 
 

5 
 

 

 BMI Part No.: 103-7750 
Cat String: EB-EGC-PXXP-E5-CA-19GD-E4Y2-XXTF-XX-B0A 
Description:
E-Series Brz, 4" RND(14), TP Prsr, Enc, 4CXN2 ORION, 9D-0.01 FT3, SN
Yr 9D & PBB, TT-5', BMI STD, 
 

2 
 

2,425.76 
 

4,851.53 
 

 

 

Domestic Quotation
Quotation No. 3458820

 

Thank you for your business! 
Estimated ship dates subject to change based upon component availability, as a result of global supply chain constraints, or credit review.

This acknowledgment is made subject to the terms & conditions found on our web-site: https://www.badgermeter.com/terms-and-conditions.
Terms and conditions related to service units, training, and professional services can be found here: https://badgermeter.com/service-units-terms-and-conditions

 
Page 1 of 2 

Page 132 of 139

https://www.badgermeter.com/terms-and-conditions
https://badgermeter.com/service-units-terms-and-conditions


Line #
 Description

 

Qty
 

Unit Net Price
USD 

 

Line Totals
USD 

 

6 
 

 

 BMI Part No.: 103-6671 
Cat String: E4-4E-AM-AG-TAAA-B0A 
Description:
EP Only, For Enc, ORION CELL C, Thru Ld Instl Kit, TT-8in, Grnd/Ocean-
Pause, BMI STD, 24 PACK, 
 

35 
 

138.65 
 

4,852.58 
 

7 
 

 

 BMI Part No.: 68886-104 
Description:
ORION CELLULAR LTE SERV UNIT 
 

420 
 

 0.890 
 

373.80 
 

     

 

Subtotal - USD 
 

28,766.81 
 

 

Estimated Freight Charges
 

356.94 
 

 

Tax
 

2,085.59 
 

 

Total Price - USD 
 

31,209.34 
 

Notes and Assumptions

If applicable, sales tax and freight, if included on the proposal, is an estimate and will be recalculated based on rates and tax status in

effect at the time of invoicing.
 

Actual lead time to be provided at time of order.
 

To aid in processing your order, please include the Quote number on the PO that is submitted for this proposal.  

Badger Meter provides certification files to help manage meter and endpoint inventory and to maintain meter accuracy data. The

standard method of delivery for this format is via electronic mail. Any deviations from our standard format, or any custom file formats,

will be considered on a time and material basis. 
 

Due to continuous improvements and redesign of Badger Meter products and technology solutions, Badger Meter reserves the right to

provide our newest product solutions as an alternative to the proposed products provided they are in conformance with the

requirements of the specifications and do not exceed the prices quoted.
 

 

If you would like to place an order, please contact us at Utilityorders2@badgermeter.com or by calling 1-800-876-3837.

 

 

Domestic Quotation
Quotation No. 3458820

 

Thank you for your business! 
Estimated ship dates subject to change based upon component availability, as a result of global supply chain constraints, or credit review.

This acknowledgment is made subject to the terms & conditions found on our web-site: https://www.badgermeter.com/terms-and-conditions.
Terms and conditions related to service units, training, and professional services can be found here: https://badgermeter.com/service-units-terms-and-conditions

 
Page 2 of 2 

Page 133 of 139

https://www.badgermeter.com/terms-and-conditions
https://badgermeter.com/service-units-terms-and-conditions


January 2023 

 1 

 
 
District Summary/Update 
 

 
•  Casitas Lake Level: 45% +26.8’ January 1st – 2/15/23 
•  
•    Wells: MOWD is 100% on our own wells as of 2/3/2023 
•  
•     Grant Funding: Christy Cooper has started the Grant Application process with SRF, State Revolving Fund, for the Treatment Plant 
•  
•     Income Survey: Waiting on a final report from Kennedy Communications 
•  
• Rain Fall Totals (Season) :   Casitas Dam            26.9”             Matilija Dam             41.87” 

                                                Stewart Canyon       --.--”              Nordhoff Ridge        47.87” 
 

•  GIS Mapping: GIS mapping of the district has been Completed. Staff is currently attaching info to each asset 
-LCRR Layer (Lead & Copper Rule Revisions) has been attached, EPA is requiring water utilities to inventory lead service lines between the 
water meter and the house 

 
• Treatment Plant Project: MKN & Associates are working towards final design  

 
• Well Study: In Progress; waiting on a final report by Hopkins Groundwater Consultants, Inc  

 
• Employment Opportunity: MOWD is seeking to recruit a Water Utility I/II operator. Job posting closes March 2, 2023  

 
 

Scheduled/Unscheduled Work 
Type of Work Cause Date Location Contractor Amount $ 

Service Line Leak; Contractor pulled 
service line out of the main 

Custom 
Contour 

Construction 

1/26/2023 931 Fairview Sam Hill & Sons $4,218.35 

Regrade road to Wells 4 & 7    Flooding 2/2/2023  Toro  $2,983 
District back on Wells  2/3/2023  Staff n/a 

Page 134 of 139



January 2023 

 2 

 
 

Current Well Levels and Specific Capacity 
 

WELL #1 JAN 
23’ 

FEB 
23’ 

MAR 
23’ 

APR 
23’ 

MAY 
23’ 

JUN 
23’ 

JUL 
23’ 

AUG 
23’ 

SEP 
23’ 

OCT 
23’ 

NOV 
23’ 

DEC 
23’ 

STATIC (ft) 14.53’ 19.3’           
RUNNING (ft) OFF 21.9’           

DRAW DOWN (ft) OFF 2.6’           
Gallons Per Minute (GPM) OFF 299           

Specific Capacity (gal/ft DD) OFF 115           
             

WELL #2 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC 
STATIC (ft) 16.36 20’           

RUNNING (ft) OFF 25’           
DRAW DOWN (ft) OFF 5’           

Gallons Per Minute (GPM) OFF 220           
Specific Capacity (gal/ft DD) OFF 44           

             
WELL #4 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC 

STATIC (ft) 23.60 26.6’           
RUNNING (ft) OFF 46.2’           

DRAW DOWN (ft) OFF 1.7’           
Gallons Per Minute (GPM) OFF 350           

Specific Capacity (gal/ft DD) OFF 18.6           
             

WELL #7 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC 
STATIC (ft) 31.10 33.7’           

RUNNING (ft) OFF 35.7’           
DRAW DOWN (ft) OFF 1.7’           

Gallons Per Minute (GPM) OFF 350           
Specific Capacity (gal/ft DD) OFF 176           

             
WELL #8 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC 

STATIC (ft) 33            
RUNNING (ft) OFF OFF           

DRAW DOWN (ft) OFF OFF           
Gallons Per Minute (GPM) OFF OFF           

Specific Capacity (gal/ft DD) OFF OFF           
 

Page 135 of 139



January 2023 

 3 

 
 

Water Pumped, Sold, Purchased & Water Sales  
MONTH PUMPED (AF) SOLD (AF) PURCHASED (AF) WATER SALES 

($) 
2023 JAN 1.12 24.10 24.10 $58,971.14 

FEB     
MAR     
APR     
MAY     
JUN     
JUL     

AUG     
SEP     
OCT     
NOV     
DEC     

YTD 2023 1.12 24.10 24.10 $58,971.14 
TOTAL 2022 451.43 615.38 216.43 $823,145.74 
TOTAL 2021 411.94 640.95 266.57 $648,269.32 
TOTAL 2020 485.71 635.47 197.26 $657,912.06 

 
Reserve Funds 

* Balance at the County of Ventura                                                                              $ 1,426,130.26 
 
Total Taxes                                              $ 2,045.47 
 
Total Interest from reserve account#                                                                                                   $ 0.00 

 
Fiscal Year Total Revenues 

July 1st – January 31st                                     2022                                                                  $ 1,164,941.35 

 
July 1st – January 31st                                     2023                                                                 $1,401,997.99 

 

Page 136 of 139



January 2023 

 4 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Bank Balances 
* LAIF Balance                                           $ 232,799.27 
Transferred from L.A.I.F. to General                                                                                                        $ 0.00 
(#) Quarterly Interest from LAIF                                                                         $1,209.82 
 
* Money Market (Mechanics Bank)                                                          $ 7,624.52 
 
Amount Transferred to Mechanics from County this month                                                      
Amount Transferred to General Fund from Money Market                                                                       $ 0.00 
Monthly Interest received from Money Market                                                                 $ .13 
 
General Fund Balance                                          $ 152,118.73 
 
Trust Fund Balance                                $ 7,493.30 
 
* Capital Improvement Fund                                           $ 13,807.48 
 
 (#) Quarterly Interest from Capital Account                                                                  $ .12 
 
 Total Interest accrued                                                                                     $ 1,210.07  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 137 of 139



Board Secretary Report – February 2023 

 Board Secretary Report 

February 2023 

Administrative 

• Income Survey – Kennedy Communications has reported that we met the minimum response 
threshold to submit results to the State, the preliminary calculated Median Household Income 
is $69,500.

• Recurring Board requirements reminders: Annual Form 700 due before April 1; Bi-Annual 
Harassment & Ethics Training; Photos for District ID cards.

Financial (any items not covered in separate Financials Report)

a. Online Bill Pay vendor secure transaction fee increased from $1.25 to $2.00 on February 1.
b. Financial Audit FY 21-22 in progress. – Fanning & Karrh, CPA.
c. Accounts Receivable –SB 998 timeline for disconnects for non-payment (>$200 @ 60 days) is

in effect. Late fees and District past-due processes resumed as of March 26, 2022. As of
February 16, 2023, one account has been shut off for non-payment, is vacant, and the phone is
no longer in service; mailed notices and door hangers have been unsuccessful ($449.20).

Billing/Customer Service 

Month #Total 
Service 
Orders 

# Account 
Owner 

Changes 

Monthly 
Customer Bill 

Total 

Over-
Allocation 

 $ (drought) 

Other 
Conservation 

Penalties 
Jan 22 110 5 $110,228.55 $882.00 $0 
Feb 22 72 10 $124,078.38 $4,993.00 $0 
Mar 22 80 7 $123,073.26 $5,308.00 $0 
Apr 22 72 14 $113,351.51 $2,131.00 $0 

May 22 101 6 $129,660.69 $2,294.00 $0 
Jun 22 68 7 $133,628.56 $4,311.00 $0 
Jul 22 110 6 $142,448.60 $4,095.00 $100 

Aug 22 109 8 $195,707.04 $5,236.00 $0 
Sep 22 81 6 $211,050.86 $28,070.00 $0 
Oct 22 81 6 $214,082.52 $35,420.00 $0 
Nov 22 78 5 $174,076.68 $19,655.00 $0 
Dec 22 119 5 $325,512.38* $107,275.00* $0 
Jan 23 134 4 $122,495.23 $6,800.00 $0 

• Dec 22 monthly billing and over-allocation were artificially high due to two misreads, accounting for
$186,786 and $99,340, respectively. (Actual totals: $138,726.38 and $7,935).

• Jan 23 Service Orders: 10 leak checks and 105 re-reads during meter reading for abnormal
consumption.

Page 138 of 139



Board Secretary Report – February 2023 

 

Board of Directors 

 Board Member Position Term Ends Term Type 
Michel Etchart President 2026 Long Term (Re-elected 2022) 

Christian Oakland Vice President 2024 Long Term (Elected 2020) 
James Kentosh Director 2026 Long Term (Re-elected 2022) 
Christy Cooper Director 2024 Short-Term Re-elect for 2 yr 

term to 2024 
Joe Pangea Director 2026 Long Term (Elected 2022) 

   

Projects 

d. Policy & Procedure, Resolution & Ordinance web posting – in progress. 
• Financial Audit recommended policies and procedures – ad hoc committee 

e. Employee Handbook – Draft in process. 
f. Staff evaluation of multimedia and document scanning, archiving, and search/edit software. 
g. Phone & Internet migration from AT&T to Mitec Solutions.  

 

Recommended Actions:  Receive an update from the Board Secretary concerning miscellaneous matters 
and District correspondence. Provide feedback to staff. 

Attachments:  None.  

 

  

  

Page 139 of 139


	Item 1 MOWD Regular Board Agenda 2-21-2023
	Item 3 1-17-2023 Regular Meeting Minutes
	Item 6a Income 012023
	Item 6b Expenditures 012023
	Item 6c AP Report 11623-21523
	Item 6d Board Financial Graphs
	Income & Expense Graphs

	Item 7a Bylaws Resolution 20230221
	Item 7a2 MOWD Bylaws 2023
	Article I. NAME
	Section 1.01 Name. The name of this organization is Meiners Oaks Water District, formerly known as Meiners Oaks County Water District (hereinafter referred to as the “District”).  The District is a California special district formed in 1949 and operat...

	Article II. PURPOSE AND FUNCTION
	Section 2.01 Purpose and Powers. The District is an independent special district established in accordance with and having the authority and powers as set forth in the Act.  The mission of the District is to deliver a safe, reliable and sustainable su...
	Section 2.02 Territory. A map of the District and its boundaries is attached hereto as Attachment 1.
	Section 2.03 Principal Office. The District’s administrative office shall be located at 202 W. El Roblar Drive, Ojai, California, or at such other place as the Board of Directors shall determine.

	Article III. GOVERNING BODY
	Section 3.01 Board of Directors. The Board of Directors (hereinafter, the “Board”) is the governing body of the District and the powers of the District shall, except as otherwise provided in the Act, be exercised by and under the direction of the Boar...
	Section 3.02 Number and Qualifications. The Board shall consist of five (5) Directors, each representing the District as a whole, and each of whom shall be a voter and resident of the District and otherwise qualified to hold office as provided in the ...
	Section 3.03 Elections.
	a. Election.  Board member elections are conducted in the manner provided in the Act and in accordance with the Uniform District Election Law, Elections Code Section 10500 et seq.  Elections are held in even-numbered years in November and are consolid...
	b. Term of Office.  The term of office for each member of the Board is four (4) years.  A member’s term can be terminated by his or her resignation, removal, or disqualification from office.
	c. Vacancies.  Vacancies on the Board shall be filled for the unexpired term as provided in Government Code Section 1780.

	Section 3.04 Oath of Office.  Each Director elected or appointed to the Board shall, before entering upon the duties of his or her office, take and subscribe the following oath of office and file it with the Board Secretary:
	“I, [state name], do solemnly swear (or affirm) that I will support and defend the Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of the State of California against all enemies, foreign and domestic; that I will bear true faith and allegiance ...
	Section 3.05 Board Compensation.  Directors shall be compensated for each day’s attendance at meetings of the Board and meetings of District committees, and for each day’s service rendered as a member of the Board by request of the Board, as provided ...

	Article IV. ETHICS GUIDELINES FOR BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	Section 4.01 Act in the Public Interest.  Directors must recognize that stewardship of the public interest must be their primary concern. Directors will work for the common good of the people of the District and not for any private or personal interes...
	Section 4.02 Comply with the Law.  Directors shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations in the performance of their public duties. These laws include, but are not limited to: the United States and California Constit...
	Section 4.03 Conduct of Directors. The professional and personal conduct of Directors must be above reproach and avoid even the appearance of impropriety. Directors shall refrain from abusive conduct, personal charges or verbal attacks upon the charac...
	a. Duty of Care.  A Director must pay attention to organization matters and participate fully in Board review and decision-making. He or she must exercise the care that an ordinarily prudent person would exercise in a like position and under similar c...
	b. Duty of Loyalty. A Director must put the needs of the organization ahead of any personal interest when making decisions affecting the District and may not use information obtained as a Director for personal gain. A Director must always maintain con...
	c. Duty of Obedience. A Director must be faithful to the District’s mission and may not act in a manner that is inconsistent with this mission. This requirement is based on the public trust afforded to governmental entities, and the assumption that th...
	d. Fiduciary Duty. A Director has a fiduciary (i.e., “one who must exercise a high standard of care in managing another’s money or property” (Black’s Law Dictionary, 10th ed., p. 743)) duty to the organization and is responsible for assuring the Distr...

	Section 4.04 Respect for Process. Directors shall perform their duties in accordance with the processes and rules of order established in these Bylaws.
	Section 4.05 Conduct at Public Meetings. Directors shall be prepared to attend and participate at Board meetings and Board committee meetings; listen courteously and attentively to all public discussions before the body; and focus on the business at h...
	Section 4.06 Decisions Based on Merit. Directors shall base their decisions on the merits and substance of the matter at hand, rather than on unrelated considerations.
	Section 4.07 Communication. Directors shall publicly share substantive information that is relevant to a matter under consideration by the Board which they may have received ex parte from sources outside of the public decision-making or public hearing...
	Section 4.08 Conflict of Interest. To ensure their independence and impartiality on behalf of the common good, Directors shall not use their official positions to influence government decisions in which they have a material financial interest as defin...
	In accordance with governing law, Directors shall disclose investments, interests in real property, sources of income, and gifts; and they shall abstain from participating in deliberations and decision-making where conflicts may exist pursuant to Fede...
	Section 4.09 Gifts and Favors. Directors shall not take any special advantage of services or opportunities for personal gain, because of their public office, that are not available to the public in general. They shall refrain from accepting any gifts,...
	Section 4.10 Confidential Information. Directors shall respect the confidentiality of information concerning the property, personnel or affairs of the District that they learn or receive from their interactions with other Board members, staff, or lega...
	Section 4.11 Representation of Private Interests. In keeping with their role as stewards of the public interest, Directors shall not appear on behalf of the private interests of third parties before the Board.
	Section 4.12 Advocacy. Directors shall represent the official policies of the District to the best of their ability when designated as representatives or delegates for this purpose. When presenting or communicating their individual opinions and positi...
	Section 4.13 Policy Role of Directors. The primary roles of the Directors are policy setting and policy review. Directors shall not participate in, interfere with, nor direct the daily administrative functions of the District or the professional dutie...
	Section 4.14 Positive Workplace Environment. Directors shall support the maintenance of a positive and constructive workplace environment for District employees and for citizens and businesses dealing with the District. Directors shall recognize their...

	Article V. OFFICERS OF THE BOARD
	Section 5.01 Titles and Functions.  The officers of the Board shall consist of the following, who shall be elected or appointed by the Board in the manner provided in the Act:
	a. President.  The President shall preside at all meetings of the Board, have general supervision of the affairs of the Board, represent the Board in any actions taken by the Board, be an ex officio member of all Board committees, sign all contracts o...
	b. Vice-President.  The Vice-President shall assist the President in performance of his or her duties and in his or her stead when required.
	c. Board Secretary.  The Board Secretary shall attest to all resolutions and ordinances adopted by the Board, countersign all contracts on behalf of the District, and perform such other duties and have such other powers and authority as imposed by the...

	Section 5.02 Terms of Board Officers.
	a. Length of Term.  The terms of all officers shall be from the date of their election by the Board for the following approximately one year period when elections are held again.  Any officer can be re-elected to continue in the same office.
	b. Vacancies.  If the President fails to complete his or her term, the Vice-President shall act in his or her stead and a new Vice-President shall be elected for the remainder of the term.  If the Vice-President fails to complete his or her term, the ...

	Section 5.03 Board Office Election/Appointment Process.
	a. President and Vice-President Election Process.  At its regular meeting held in the month of January of each year, the Board shall elect one of its members as President and one of its members as Vice-President.
	b. Appointment of Board Secretary.  At its regular meeting held in the month of January of each year, the Board shall appoint, by majority vote, the Board Secretary in the manner provided in the Act.  A Director may not serve as the Secretary.
	c. Assumption of Duties.  Officers shall assume the duties of their offices immediately following completion of the election or appointment process for all offices.


	Article VI. MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	Section 6.01 Time and Place. Regular meetings of the Board shall be held on the third (3rd) Tuesday of each month, or as otherwise set by resolution of the Board.  All meetings shall be conducted pursuant to and in compliance with the provisions of Go...
	Section 6.02 Agenda.
	a. Formation, review and finalization of the agenda for each regular or special Board meeting shall be the joint responsibility of the Board President, General Manager, Board Secretary, and District legal counsel.
	b. For any agenda item that is complex or introduces topics unfamiliar to the Board, or for which the General Manager otherwise determines that a written staff report would be beneficial to the Board’s review and discussion of the item, the General Ma...
	c. The Board Secretary shall be responsible for complying with all applicable requirements for preparing, posting, mailing, emailing, and otherwise distributing each Board meeting agenda as required by the Brown Act.
	d. The Board President, or acting President, may make changes in the order of the items on the Board agenda unless a two-thirds vote of the Board members in attendance defeats the decision of the President.
	e. In accordance with Government Code Section 54954.2(a)(3), any Board member may request an item be placed on a future Board meeting agenda for discussion or action. The Board President, in cooperation with the District General Manager, shall determi...
	f. Emergency items can only be added pursuant to the provisions set forth in Government Code Section 54954.2.
	g. Members of the public may request to have an item placed on a future Board agenda during the public comment portion of a Board meeting.  The President shall ask if any Board member supports this request.  If there is support, the General Manager wi...

	Section 6.03 Quorum. A majority of the current Board membership shall constitute a quorum. A majority of the Board members voting shall be required to approve, disapprove or otherwise act on any proposal, except matters requiring action by a specific ...
	Section 6.04 Record of Proceedings.
	a. Recordings. All Board meetings shall be either audio or video-recorded and these recordings may be destroyed once the written minutes are prepared and approved by the Board, but in any event no less than thirty (30) days after the recording or for ...
	b. Written Minutes of Board Meetings. The Board Secretary shall prepare for approval by the Board minutes recording all resolutions, ordinances, actions, and determinations of the Board.  Minutes shall contain mainly a record of what was done at the m...
	c. Official Signatures. All papers involving official acts of the Board shall be signed in accordance with appropriate legislation relating to such acts. In the absence of specific regulations, the signature of the President or Vice-President attested...

	Section 6.05 Order of Business.  Subject to the authority of the President to make changes to the order of the agenda as provided in Section 6.02.C above, the preferred order of business shall generally be as follows:
	Section 6.06 Closed Sessions. The Board may meet in closed session in accordance with the Brown Act.
	Section 6.07 Amendments or Additions to the Agenda. Government Code Section 54954.2 provides that no action or discussion shall be undertaken on any item not appearing on the posted agenda, with certain specific exceptions. Subject to such specified e...
	Section 6.08 Adjournment.  The Board may adjourn any regular, adjourned regular, special, or adjourned special meeting to a time and place specified in the order of adjournment, pursuant to Government Code Section 54955.
	Section 6.09 Temporary President. In the absence of the President or Vice-President 15 minutes after the noticed time of any meeting of the Board, the Board Secretary shall convene the meeting and the Board shall elect a temporary President to conduct...
	Section 6.10 Rules of Order for Board and Board Committee Meetings.
	a. To the fullest extent practicable, the Board shall follow the latest edition of Robert’s Rules of Order Newly Revised in the conduct of all Board and Board Committee business. If a conflict should arise between these Bylaws and Robert’s Rules of Or...
	b. To obtain the floor, a Director, staff member or public attendee must be directly recognized by the President.
	c. The Director making a motion shall clearly state the action or actions desired.
	d. A motion may be amended, prior to the vote, if the first & second on that motion agree to the amendment.
	e. A Board member who voted with the prevailing side on a question previously considered by the Board, may, prior to the adjournment of the meeting where such question was considered, move that the Board reconsider the vote on that question. Any membe...
	f. If, after the adjournment of a meeting where a question was previously considered, a Board member who voted with the prevailing side on that question requests reconsideration of the question, a motion for reconsideration will be placed on the agend...
	g. Agenda items which shall require a roll call vote are:
	h. All other Board votes on other Board meeting agenda items may be conducted by voice vote, (i.e., signifying affirmative or negative). The Board Secretary shall publicly report any action taken in the minutes and the vote or abstention on that actio...

	Section 6.11 Public Hearings. Public hearings will be conducted as follows:
	1. Open public hearing
	2. Receive staff report and recommendations
	3. Report of written communications by Board Secretary
	4. Public comment
	5. Close public hearing
	6. Discussion by Board of Directors


	Article VII.  BOARD COMMITTEES
	Section 7.01 Establishment of Committees. The President may appoint such standing or temporary (ad hoc) committees as he or she deems appropriate and shall appoint, with the advice and consent of the Board, the members of committees from among the mem...
	Section 7.02 Committee Meetings.  Committee meetings are public and subject to the requirements of the Brown Act.  The committee meeting schedule shall be mutually determined by the committee membership.  Committee meetings cannot be held without a ma...
	Section 7.03 Representation on Other Boards, Committees and Agencies.  The President shall appoint individual Directors to serve as the Board’s representative to board, committees and agencies outside the District.  The President may appoint himself o...

	Article VIII. ADMINISTRATION OF DISTRICT BUSINESS
	Section 8.01 General Manager. The Board of Directors shall appoint a General Manager to implement the policies and programs approved by the Board of Directors. The General Manager so selected shall meet such minimum qualifications as are established b...
	Section 8.02 Legal Counsel. The Board of Directors shall retain legal counsel to ensure all business of the District is conducted and all District Board actions taken conform to all applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations.
	Section 8.03 Independent Auditor.  As required by law, the Board shall obtain the services of an independent certified public accountant to annually audit the financial books and records of the District. Such auditor shall annually present a written r...
	Section 8.04 Other Employees.  The General Manager shall appoint such other employees as are necessary to carry out the programs and policies of the Board of Directors and shall have the authority to execute employment agreements and make appointments...
	Section 8.05 Conflict of Interest Code.  All Board Members and covered employees are subject to the District’s conflict of interest code and shall file periodic statements as required by the Political Reform Act of 1974 (Gov. Code Section 81000 et seq...
	Section 8.06 Fiscal Matters. Consistent with the provisions of applicable laws of the State of California, and the operational needs of the District, the General Manager or his or her designee shall be authorized and responsible for the fiscal concern...
	a. District Fiscal Year.  Fiscal Year begins July 1st and ends June 30th.
	b. Budget.  Prepare, for adoption by the Board of Directors prior to July 1st of each year, a budget showing anticipated revenues and expenses for personnel, services, supplies, equipment and related expenses to perform the purposes and goals of the D...
	c. Finance Management.  As authorized by the Board, the General Manager will direct the collection and disbursement of all monies into and out of the District treasury. The General Manager is authorized to make investments and open and close bank acco...
	d. Purchasing Authority. The General Manager has the authority to procure labor, supplies, services and equipment as necessary in accordance with policies established by the Board of Directors.
	e. Annual Audits. The General Manager shall arrange for entrance and exit interviews with the independent auditor as directed by the Board.
	The General Manager is responsible for annually submitting financial reports to the State Controller’s office (State Controller’s Report) in accordance with Government Code Section 53891.
	The independent auditor is to be instructed to provide the Board of Directors with access to all correspondence related to the audit, simultaneously submitting copies of such correspondence to the General Manager and the Board Secretary.
	f. Statement of Investment Policy. The General Manager is responsible to present to the Board, for review and approval, an annual Statement of Investment Policy in accordance with Government Code Section 53646.
	g. Reimbursement Disclosure. The General Manager is responsible for a report being published, at least annually, to disclose any reimbursement paid by the District of at least one hundred dollars ($100) for each individual charge for services or produ...


	Article IX. ADOPTION AND AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS

	Item 7a3 Board Bylaws 8-16-2011
	Item 7b F-002 Purchasing Goods & Services Policy
	Item 7c VRIF2 Letter
	Item 7d Potential Grant Funding
	DWSRF FUNDING

	Item 7e1 1330 S La Luna FINAL
	Item 7e2 190 E El Roblar Will Serve Request Agenda Packet_Redacted
	190 E El Roblar Will Serve Request Application_Redacted
	Will Serve Review_190_E_ElRoblar_1-30-23_SW
	Review of Application for Will Serve Letter
	New 5,000 sf metal structure w/2 bathrooms for Property with Existing Meter at 190 E. El Roblar.
	Proposal
	Screening Step 1:  Is the proposed building site on a legal lot? YES
	Recommendation


	190 E El Roblar SITE PLAN
	Sheets and Views
	6449 CUP SITE PLAN-Layout1


	190 E El Roblar Assessors Map

	Item 7e3 240 N. Arnaz Ave  Will Serve Letter Agenda Packet_Redacted
	240 N. Arnaz Ave  Will Serve Letter Application_Redacted
	240 N. Arnaz Ave  Will Serve Letter Application 2_Redacted
	Will Serve Review_240-244_N_Arnaz_1-30-23_SW
	Review of Application for Will Serve Letter
	This property (water account) has two APNs, each parcel has an existing dwelling, served by one meter 240-244 N. Arnaz. The owner intends to sell each parcel and needs a meter to serve the second parcel (017-0-061-46 & 017-0-061-47).
	Proposal
	Screening Step 1:  Is the proposed building site on a legal lot? YES
	Recommendation


	240 N. Arnaz Site Plan
	240 N. Arnaz Ave Building Records
	240 N Arnaz Parcel and Subdivision Map

	Item 7e4 234 & 246 S. Padre Juan Will Serve Agenda Packet_Redacted
	234 & 246 S. Padre Juan Will Serve Application_Redacted
	Will Serve Review_246_S_PadreJuan_1-30-23_SW
	Review of Application for Will Serve Letter
	Add a new RES meter for existing dwelling at 246 S. Padre Juan, currently served with Existing Meter at 234 S. Padre Juan. This property (water account) has two APNs, each parcel has an existing dwelling, served by one meter. The owner intends to sel...
	Proposal
	Screening Step 1:  Is the proposed building site on a legal lot? YES
	Recommendation


	234 S. Padre Juan Site Map
	234 246 S. Padre Juan Site Map
	234 S. Padre Juan Building Records
	234 S. Padre Juan Building Records 1
	234 S. Padre Juan Building Records 2

	234 & 246 S. Padre Juan Assessors Map

	Item 7e5 569 Tico Will Serve Request Application Agenda Packet_Redacted
	569 Tico Will Serve Request Application_Redacted
	Will Serve Review_569_Tico_1-30-23_SW
	Review of Application for Will Serve Letter
	New 600 sf ADU (manufactured home) for Property with Existing Meter at 569 Tico Rd.
	Proposal
	Screening Step 1:  Is the proposed building site on a legal lot? YES
	Recommendation


	569 S Tico Plans 1-1-3-23
	TICO-A01-1-3-23
	Sheets and Views
	A01


	TICO-A02-1-3-23
	Sheets and Views
	A02


	TICO-A03-1-3-23
	Sheets and Views
	A03


	TICO-A03D-1-3-23
	Sheets and Views
	A03D


	TICO-A04-1-3-23
	Sheets and Views
	A04



	569 Tico Parcel Map
	569 Tico Assessors Map
	569 Tico Building Permit

	Item 7e6 138 S Alvarado Will Serve Agenda Packet_Redacted
	138 S Alvarado Will Serve Application_Redacted
	Will Serve Review_138_S_Alvarado_1-30-23_SW
	Review of Application for Will Serve Letter
	New Tiny Home ADU for Property with Existing Meter at 138 S. Alvarado.
	Proposal
	Screening Step 1:  Is the proposed building site on a legal lot? YES
	Recommendation


	138 S Alvarado Building Plans
	T-0 - 138 S. Alvarado Ave
	Sheets and Views
	T-0 - 138 S. Alvarado Ave-ARCHRAY


	A-1 - T-0 - 138 S.Alvarado Ave
	Sheets and Views
	A-1 - T-0 - 138 S.Alvarado Ave-ARCHRAY



	138 S Alvarado Building Permits
	138 S Alvarado lot merger
	138 S Alvarado lot merge
	138 S Alvarado Notice of Merger

	138 S Alvarado Maps

	Item 7f Migrate Phone & Internet
	Item 7f2 phone quote-00001028
	Item 7f3 phone quote-00001029
	Item 7f4 phone quote-00001030
	Item 7g Temporary Salary AdjustmentGM
	Item 7h1 AMI Start-Up (003)
	Item 7h2 AMI E55 TO E4TWIST 5'CFCELL-CSERVICE UNITS (TAX  FREIGHT)
	Item 8 January 2023 G.M. Report
	Item 9 Board Secretary Report February 2023



